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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

201 2012 2013 2014 2015

EETT  EETT  ENTT  BETT | BETR
HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HKS$'000

Y Results
BR 4 A1 i 7 Profit before taxation 321,953 858,802 574,614 491,202 486,020
FrEfHis Income tax expense (21,370) (32,062) (18,260) (18,515) (8,681)

ADEEBEEA  Profit for the year attributable to
EEAFEERR equity holders of the Company 300,583 826,740 556,354 472,687 477,339

Ao MR R A A EAY A

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

BT
HK$ Thousand
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
BT BEFT EBEFT BT BEFT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BEFE Net assets
VERY: £ Y SE Property, plant and equipment 20,454 19,445 20,404 20,122 19,061
BEME Investment properties 122,456 136,193 154,825 165,762 179,215
AERT Joint ventures 1,963,657 64,901 - - =
/NG| Associates 13,879 2,237,071 2,468,663 2,945,890 3,263,977
ARHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 477,114 622,094 452,522 770,129 728,713
EEERLEK Loans to customers and interest
PSS receivable = = - - 1,519
BRREE Reinsurance assets 3,268 2,523 2,097 3,402 2,479
BT Prepayments = = = - 1,549
BLEMGHEE Deferred income tax assets 428 419 376 4,281 6,746
MEEE Current assets 791,440 1,166,764 1,209,443 1,668,361 1,684,713
REERE Current liabilities (337,868) (392,133) (305,125) (686,001) (226,823)
RITER Bank borrowings = = = - (502,116)
REBEL Insurance contracts (14,069) (14,554) (21,896) (27,707) (33,844)
BEEMEHEAE Deferred income tax liabilities (33,844) (37,972) (45,577) (48,230) (41,960)
EERE Net assets 3,006,915 3,804,751 3,935,732 4,816,009 5,083,229
EnEE Total equity
i Share capital 459,429 459,429 459,429 891,135 891,135
EmF#Es Other reserves 1,930,407 1,927,830 1,595,645 1,716,858 1,501,099
R A Retained profits
BRR B Proposed dividend 18,377 41,348 22,971 22,971 22,971
Hity Others 598,702 1,307,833 1,857,687 2,185,045 2,666,165
REMEERERER Amount recognised in other
LR 25t comprehensive income and
BIELERNEE accumulated in equity relating
BEAMFE to assets held for sale £ 68,311 = = 1,859
ARFERFEA Total equity attributable to
EEEREE equity holders of the Company 3,006,915 3,804,751 3,935,732 4,816,009 5,083,229

A0 v B S A5 AN M A B 2 A AR

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2015.

SERRE(EE)
Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman)

20155 BB TN T BARA MR EIRIT T M
BB - X B B A BE SRR R EE R
ELRBETENKBENZE  TRAME
B RE MR E - E L RAREEEBIRE
MBEMEPERAMNNEEREBENY

#2 o
=

2015  AEBESFE ARLRABE
47,7348 T * L2014 1) 8 1547,2698 JT 1%
o - REFRFIEMEZHNBEEETH
RER1T ([EIR]) IR — IRz - 2015
FERERAFEE103.90 -

We faced a complex picture of economic recovery and
challenging operating conditions for business in 2015.
The economic growth is slowing in Mainland China due to
ongoing economic deleveraging and continuing shifting to
a consumer and services-driven economy. These forces are
impacting the local economic environment and our micro
credit business in Mainland China.

In 2015, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders
was HK$477.34 million, representing an increase of 1% as
compared to HK$472.69 million in 2014. The increase in
earnings for the year was mainly attributable to the one-off
gain on dilution of equity interest in Xiamen International
Bank (“XIB”). Basic earnings per share amounted to 103.9 HK
cents in 2015.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

While our micro credit business in Mainland China was
severely challenged, we achieved solid results in our banking
business. In 2015, the Group's share of results of its banking
business reached HK$517.97 million, representing an
increase of 15.9% as compared to HK$446.8 million in 2014,
notwithstanding the dilution of the Company’s shareholding
in XIB from 14.8005% to 10.6289% in the second half of 2015.

We had tightened our credit control and increased efforts to
recover non-performing loans of our micro credit business.
We had launched our brand new “Min Xin Travel Insurance
Package” in Hong Kong and Macau in the fourth quarter of
2015 to further strengthen and diversify our client portfolio.

Asset quality of the Group remains stable. Total assets
stood at HK$5.89 billion, representing an increase of 5.6%
as compared to the end of 2014. As an investment-based
Company, total assets of our banking business accounted
for 54.8% of the Group’s total assets and results contributed
by banking business represented 106% of the Group's profit
attributable to shareholders.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of 5 HK cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Looking at the year ahead, the People’s Bank of China has cut
the required reserve ratio and the benchmark interest rates
and is expected to keep pace of steady economic growth in
Mainland China. At the same time, the “One Belt, One Road”
initiative should provide new opportunities for our banking
business.

I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to my fellow
board members for their efforts in upholding the standards
of corporate management and governance. | would like to
take this opportunity to thank the management team and all
our staff for their continued hard work, dedicated services
and contributions to the business development of the Group.
Also, on behalf of the Board, | wish to offer sincere thanks to
our business partners and stakeholders for their continued
trust and support.

Weng Ruo Tong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

We faced a complex operating conditions in 2015. The slower
pace of economic growth in Mainland China and ongoing
deleveraging created new challenges to our business.

Operating Results

In 2015, the Group achieved profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$477.34 million, representing an increase
of 1% as compared to HK$472.69 million in 2014. Basic
earnings per share for the year amounted to 103.9 HK cents,
an increase of 1.01 HK cents as compared to 2014.

XIB issued new shares to further enlarge its share capital in
June 2015 and the Company’s shareholding in XIB had been
diluted from 14.8005% to 10.6289%. Notwithstanding the
dilution in the Company’s shareholding, the Group's share
of results of XIB reached HK$517.97 million contributed by
the sound results achieved by XIB. In addition, the Group
recorded a one-off gain on dilution of shareholding in XIB of
HK$73.04 million during the year.

Financial Services

The financial services business of the Group includes the
provision of micro credit business in Mainland China and
the engagement of banking business, through its major
associates, XIB and Luso International Bank (“LIB") (“XIB
Group”) in Mainland China and Macau respectively.

In 2015, the Group’s financial services business reported
a profit after tax of HK$472.49 million, an increase of 5.1%
as compared to HK$449.71 million in 2014. Excluding the
impact of the extraordinary gains on dilution, the profit
after tax amounted to HK$399.45 million, a decrease of 8.8%
as compared to 2014 due to our micro credit business in
Mainland China was severely challenged during the year.

Banking Business

XIB focused on providing diversified, personalised and
comprehensive financial products and took further steps
to enhance the customer experience and strengthen ties
with existing clients and reach new targeted customers
more effectively. In 2015, XIB demonstrated once again its
potential and capability to generate substantial value for its
shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DlSCUSSlON AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

XIB reported a profit after tax prepared in accordance with
the PRC Accounting Standards of RMB3.32 billion, an increase
of RMB1.09 billion, or 49%, as compared to RMB2.23 billion
recorded in 2014. Net interest income continued to grow
and recorded an increase of 75.4% in 2015, mainly driven by
the growth of loan portfolio and the income brought by new
business. Non-interest income fell by 38% in 2015, which
was mainly due to net exchange losses resulting from the
depreciation in the Renminbi.

At 31 December 2015, the total assets grew by 31.6% to
RMB459.2 billion as compared to RMB348.94 billion at the
end of 2014. Gross loans to customers were RMB153.59
billion, an increase of 37.9% as compared to RMB111.37
billion at the end of 2014. XIB substantially grew its loans
portfolio while continuing to uphold good asset quality
with non-performing loan ratio less than 1%. Total deposits
from customers were up 38.4% to RMB310.34 billion from
RMB224.19 billion at the end of 2014.

During the year, XIB issued 900 million new shares at RMB7.5
per share to third parties for a consideration of RMB6.75
billion. In addition, XIB issued bonus shares at 10 new shares
for 10 existing shares in December 2015 and the issued
shares had been increased to 6.39 billion shares. LIB, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of XIB, issued new shares to third
parties to enlarge its capital base in December 2015 and thus,
the shareholding of XIB had been diluted to 49.04%. LIB was
classified as a subsidiary of XIB upon completion of the share
issue as XIB had the ability to exercise controlling power over
the operation of LIB.

The presence of about 50 branches and sub-branches in 9
cities in Mainland China and 13 branches in Macau provides
convenient services to customers. Also, XIB Group launched
its online banking services and mobile banking app to
better serve its customers’ needs and increase the number
of potential points of client contact. Supported by these
well-established infrastructures, its committed services to
customers enable XIB to respond swiftly to new opportunities
for business created by favorable policy development.
It is believed that XIB will generate substantial value for
shareholders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)
Micro Credit Business

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited (“Minxin Micro Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, is engaged in the provision of micro loans
to small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals in
Sanming City, Fujian Province.

Minxin Micro Credit faced a challenging operating
environment in 2015. Small and medium size enterprises
faced its difficult time as the ongoing economic deleveraging
had slow down the growth rate of gross domestic product.
Shortage of funds had definitely ruined most of the small and
medium size enterprises, especially those in third-tier and
fourth-tier cities, like Sanming City. The default in interest
payment and principal repayment was widespread from the
beginning of 2015. The non-performing loan ratio of Minxin
Micro Credit stood at 78.5%, increased substantially as
compared to the end of 2014.

At 31 December 2015, loans to customers were RMB286.81
million (equivalent to HK$342.26 million), an increase of
15.1% from RMB249.1 million (equivalent to HK$311.28
million) at the end of 2014. These loans mainly comprised
secured, pledged and guaranteed loans. In view of the
widespread of default in interest payment and principal
repayment for the year and based on the overdue loans to
customers at the reporting date, the Group had increased
the impairment losses on loans and interest receivable to
RMB135.87 million (equivalent to HK$162.13 million) at
the end of 2015, surged by 339% or RMB104.92 million, as
compared to RMB30.95 million (equivalent to HK$38.68
million) at the end of 2014. Allowances to total loans
(included interest receivable) ratio was 45.8% at 31 December
2015, was up 33.5 percentage points as compared with 12.3%
at the end of 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)
Micro Credit Business (Continued)

Excluding the interest income on impaired loans, Minxin
Micro Credit reported interest income generated from
loans of RMB25.75 million (equivalent to HK$31.9 million)
during the year, a decrease of 33.3% as compared with
RMB38.59 million (equivalent to HK$48.47 million) in 2014,
mainly due to the cessation of interest income recognition
on non-performing loans. Due to the additional provision
of impairment losses of RMB104.92 million (equivalent
to HK$129.96 million) recorded during the year, Minxin
Micro Credit recorded a loss after tax of RMB82.17 million
(equivalent to HK$101.79 million), as compared to a profit
after tax of RMB3.08 million (equivalent to HK$3.87 million) in
2014.

Minxin Micro Credit took aggressive action to manage
asset quality, including but not limited to tighten the credit
guidelines in order to control the quality of new loans and
put more efforts to recover the non-performing loans. Minxin
Micro Credit had taken legal action against several borrowers
who were delinquent in interest and principal repayment
in order to take possession of the pledged assets. The
management of Minxin Micro Credit will increase resources
and efforts to recover non-performing loans for the year
ahead.

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, underwrites
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau.

Min Xin Insurance recorded gross insurance premium of
HK$61.92 million in 2015, grew by 17.4% as compared to
HK$52.74 million in 2014, primarily contributed from the
satisfactory growth from our bancasurance business in
Macau. The Macau insurance business performed well and
achieved a 26.2% increase in gross insurance premium in
2015. The Hong Kong insurance business showed a sign of
improvement and the gross insurance premium grew by 8.6%
in 2015.

11
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Insurance Business (Continued)

Underwriting profit before deducting management
expenses for underwriting business declined by 15.2%
to HK$6.4 million, mainly due to deteriorated claims
experience of employees’ compensation insurance business
for construction projects. Min Xin Insurance recorded an
underwriting loss of HK$1.92 million, improved by 34.9%
as compared to the underwriting loss of HK$2.95 million in
2014, if management expenses for underwriting business are
included.

Min Xin Insurance recorded a profit after tax of HK$5.43
million, an increase of 23.2% from HK$4.41 million in 2014,
mainly due to net gains generated from revaluation of
investment properties and trading of listed equity securities.

Min Xin Insurance launched its brand new “Min Xin Travel
Insurance Package” in Hong Kong and Macau general
insurance market in November 2015 and a satisfactory result
is achieved. The new Company Website was launched in the
third quarter of 2015 and our single trip travel insurance
product is distributed through the online system in our
Company Website. To enhance its service quality and speed
up the workflow, Min Xin Insurance had also launched its
new online motor insurance quotation system to facilitate the
efficiency of private car insurance quotation.

In order to accelerate its re-branding project in 2016, Min
Xin Insurance will launch its brand new “Min Xin Personal
Accident Comprehensive Insurance Plan” and “Min Xin Home
Package Insurance” in the second quarter of 2016 and a
Product Launch Cocktail Reception will be held at World
Trade Centre Club Hong Kong at 3:30 pm on 31 March 2016.

Property Development and Investment

The property development and investment business of
the Group mainly comprises the real estate development
business and the leasing of certain investment properties
in Mainland China. In 2015, the property development and
investment business reported a profit after tax of HK$0.22
million, a decrease by 97.8% as compared to HK$9.97 million
in 2014 due to lack of interest income generated from the
loan to a real estate developer and the revaluation loss of
investment properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment (Continued)

The Group was able to maintain a stable rental income from
its commercial properties and car parks in Fuzhou, Fujian
Province (the “Fuzhou Property”). The Group recorded a
rental income of RMB5.55 million in 2015, was up 0.4% as
compared to RMB5.53 million in 2014. The market rental
income in Fuzhou had generally declined due to over supply
of office building. At 31 December 2015, the fair value of the
Fuzhou Property was RMB80.04 million, a decrease of 3.8% as
compared to the fair value of RMB83.21 million at the end of
2014. The Group recorded a fair value loss of HK$11.74 million
and a fair value loss after deferred tax of HK$4.11 million in
2015, as compared to a fair value gain of HK$3.87 million and
a fair value gain after deferred tax of HK$1.27 million in 2014.

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng Shares™)

At 31 December 2015, the Shanghai Composite Index
increased by about 9.4% as compared to that at the end of
2014. However, the closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-share
declined from RMB8.81 per share at 31 December 2014 to
RMB8.72 per share at 31 December 2015. The fair value of
the Group’s investment in Huaneng Shares measured with
reference to the closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-Share stood
at HK$727.92 million (equivalent to RMB609.98 million). The
loss of HK$42.21 million arising from the change in its fair
value (2014: gain of HK$317.61 million) was recorded in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the investment revaluation reserve.

Being classified as a long term available-for-sale financial
asset of the Group, Huaneng Shares generate a stable
dividend income to the Group. During the year, Huaneng
paid a final dividend for 2014 of RMB0.38 per share. The
Group recorded dividend income totaling RMB26.58 million
(equivalent to HK$33.22 million), as compared to the final
dividend for 2013 of RMB0.38 per share totaling RMB26.58
million (equivalent to HK$33.23 million) recorded by the
Group in 2014.

Huaneng has announced its 2015 annual results under
the PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue has
decreased by 7.9% year-on-year, while its operating expenses
have reduced by 12.5% as compared with 2014. Such
decrease in operating expenses was due to the reduced fuel
cost. Its profit attributable to equity holders has increased by
13.2% to RMB13.79 billion with earnings per share of RMB0.95
for the year, an increase of 10.5% as compared to RMB0.86
per share in 2014.

1

3



11

B{E5&@AMR 2 8 Min Xin Holdings Limited

IR SR AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

F 5 1o

-

B 1 I

AEB —EHEEFTERBTENTERE
BAR 5 2 B2 A9 BA 75 AR 7K S © 32201512 A
31H & B 317 IX 7459,428,656 % (20144F :
459,428,6560% ) 7T & * 7A2015F12H318 -
FREEFEAE11.067T (201445 B 1K
10.487T) °

ARG 25 H R R B e R

R2015F12A3MB  AEBREEFEAEBEK
80,4748 7T (20145 : B #76,1948 1) ' 42
BEAALNAIRERAE AR EZRI5.8%
(20144 :15.8% ) - FA2015F12A31H K&
ERBEERRBEBED R AEEK167,2028
7C (20144 : 7#1166,8368 7T ) M5 122,682
& 7T (20144 : B 68,6008 7T ) * BN L X
B7.415 (20144 : 2,415 ) -

i K S B AR A

AEEAEHETFREEERE RS ESH
2 IRNEERRKAREERPREES

R2015F12 4318 KEEMERBIEAH
RITER S HAE62,5848 7T (20144 - BHE
58,000 JT ) * 20144 F [ 3% N 75 % 4,584
BT -REEXRBEEMHOTHERBE-
BERE2AN=ZFANEE  EhEE11,7588
TR—EREE B¥E15138BTN —F=&
ENEE R BE35688E T MER AF
RNEE-AREBNERYAEBE UFEF
R B o R2015F12A318  BEEF RN
F31EE34E (2014F : FF RN F2EE
3.1E) o

M2015F12 8318 FiltiRITERIUREH
TR ERBITHRITTERARES1008
T (EEB%4893870) (2014F : AR
32,4008 7 E1E B 40,4898 7T) - XEE

FEE 11,0448 7T (2014F 1 E 81,0708
TO)H B AR EERAE-

B it A SN - REE ) E b E E R2015F &
201412 A31 B EE I -

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Net Asset Value per Share

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and strives to maintain a healthy financial
position. Based on 459,428,656 shares in issue at 31
December 2015 (2014: 459,428,656 shares), the net asset
value per share was HK$11.06 at 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$10.48).

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

At 31 December 2015, the total liabilities of the Group were
HKS$804.74 million (2014: HK$761.94 million) and the ratio
of total liabilities to total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company was 15.8% (2014: 15.8%). At 31 December
2015, the current assets and current liabilities of the Group
were HK$1,672.02 million (2014: HKS$1,668.36 million) and
HK$226.82 million (2014: HK$686 million) respectively with a
current ratio of 7.4 (2014: 2.4).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

The Group monitors its liquidity requirement on a short to
medium term basis and arranges refinancing of the Group's
borrowings as appropriate.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings from local
banks totaled HK$625.84 million (2014: HK$580 million), an
increase of HK$45.84 million as compared to the end of 2014.
The maturity profile of the loans based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan facilities is spread over
a period of three years, with HK$117.58 million repayable
within one year, HK$151.38 million repayable more than one
year but within two years and HK$356.88 million repayable
more than two years but within five years. The loans of the
Group are in Hong Kong dollars and subject to floating
interest rates. The effective interest rate at 31 December 2015
ranged from 3.1% to 3.4% per annum (2014: ranged from 2%
to 3.1% per annum).

At 31 December 2015, the above bank loans were secured
by the Group’s bank deposits of RMB41 million (equivalent
to HK$48.93 million) (2014: RMB324 million, equivalent to
HK$404.89 million) placed with the lending banks and the
self-use office building with a net book value of HK$10.44
million (2014: HK$10.7 million).

Save for the above, no other assets of the Group were
pledged at 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings and advances divided by total net assets) still
maintained at a low level and was 12.1% (2014: 12%).

Cash Position

The Group's bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. At 31 December 2015, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$1,432.1 million (2014:
HK$1,353.93 million) of which 4.3% were in Hong Kong
Dollars, 94.7% in Renminbi and 1% in other currencies (2014:
9.5% in Hong Kong Dollars, 89.6% in Renminbi and 0.9% in
other currencies).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong (the “"HKOCI"), a
subsidiary shall maintain at all times a portion of its funds
of not less than HK$16 million in the name of Insurance
Authority account in bank deposits. At 31 December 2015,
that subsidiary has placed a fixed deposit of RMB13.9
million (equivalent to HK$16.59 million) and HKS$1 million
(2014: HKS16 million) in the name of Insurance Authority
account with a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment of such
requirements. That subsidiary has also maintained bank
deposits of MOP13.4 million (equivalent to HK$13.01 million)
and RMB3.68 million (equivalent to HK$4.39 million) (2014:
MOP11.9 million, equivalent to HK$11.55 million) for fulfilling
certain requirements under the Macau Insurance Companies
Ordinance.

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau, the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises
from currency fluctuations between Hong Kong Dollars
and Renminbi. As the Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi are
both under managed floating systems, the Group reviews
and monitors periodically its foreign currency exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment and investment
properties amounted to HK$0.2 million (2014: HK$0.21
million).

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to the purchase of new computerised systems
amounted to HK$1.63 million (2014: Nil).

Investment Commitments

At 31 December 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company had investment commitments relating to the
contribution of RMB8.55 million (equivalent to HK$10.2
million) (2014: Nil) to the registered capital of an associate
principally engaged in the development and distribution of
intelligent access door control system in Mainland China.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2015, the Group had 75 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to
the employees including retirement benefits and medical
scheme.

The Group regards human resources as its valuable assets.
The Group offers numerous employee benefits and group
activities to our staff members. To motivate our employees
to enhance and develop their professional knowledges and
skills, the Group provides on-the-job trainings and workshops
for our employees as well as encourages them to attend
seminars and trainings with topics of relevance to their jobs
and duties funded by the Group. The Group also organises
recreational outings and wellness workshops on topics such
as cooking and sports activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

With respect to the Group’s insurance business, we
are committed to establish a good long-term business
relationship with our brokers and agents. Insurance products
together with the pricing philosophy and other guidelines
will be provided to the brokers and agents if needed. Our
underwriters will visit our brokers and agents regularly to
maintain a good relationship. Our claims and customer
service staff will swiftly and carefully manage and respond to
our brokers’ and agents’ enquiries in relation to the insurance
products and other related matters.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group continues
to support the environmental protection initiatives to
conserve the natural resources. We place a high priority on
minimisation of the environmental impact of our business
activities by promoting energy-efficient lighting to reduce
energy consumption. In addition, we actively encourages
staff members to consume less energy, water and paper, such
as e-filings and paper recycling in our offices.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance and we are aware of the potential risks of
regulatory non-compliance. As far as the Board is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations, and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. They are not
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks
and uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Financial risks

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks including insurance risk, market risk (including
foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The details of the Group’s financial risks
exposure are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business risks
Banking Business

The growth of XIB Group depends on the macroeconomic
factors that affect Mainland China and Macau, including the
growth of gross domestic product, inflation levels, changes in
laws or regulations related to banks and financial products,
changes in macroeconomic control policies, market liquidity,
changes in credit policies, changes in loan demands as well
as progress of financial reform and interest rate liberalisation.
XIB Group may be unable to maintain its growth rate as a
result of an adverse change in any one or more of the above
factors or other factors, which could have a material and
adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations
and prospects.

Micro Credit Business

Pursuant to the laws and regulations in Mainland China,
Minxin Micro Credit is not permitted to grant any loan to
non-resident customers in Sanming City. As the business
operations of Minxin Micro Credit is restricted to Sanming
City, its growth opportunities will depend on the stability and
prosperity of economy of Sanming City. If there is significant
deterioration of the economy in Sanming City, it may have
adverse effect on the repayment ability of its customers, and
indeed, the financial condition and results of operations of
Minxin Micro Credit may be adversely affected.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business risks (Continued)
Insurance Business

The insurance industries in Hong Kong and Macau are highly
regulated. Companies carrying on insurance business in or
from Hong Kong and Macau must obtain authorisation from
the HKOCI and Autoridade Monetaria De Macau (the “AMCM”)
respectively and are subject to the requirements imposed
by HKOCI and AMCM from time to time. Authorisation will
only be granted to insurers when certain requirements under
the Insurance Companies Ordinance and Macau Insurance
Companies Ordinance are met. Compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations may restrict the operations of the
Group's insurance business and require the Group to deploy
significant resources and to devote considerable time to such
compliance efforts. New or revised laws, rules and regulations
may be introduced from time to time and such changes may
have an adverse effect on the insurance companies in Hong
Kong and Macau.

The Group establishes and maintains reserves to cover
estimated losses and associated expenses for reported and
unreported claims. Reserves estimated can be affected
by various variables, such as changes in claims handling
procedures, inflation, missing claims and legislative
and regulatory changes. Most of these variables are not
directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis,
and are outside the Group’s control. As a result, actual
claims payments may differ significantly from the reserves
estimated, despite the use of actuarial analysis in calculating
reserves. If the Group's reserves are inadequate and need
to be increased in future periods, the results of the Group's
insurance business would be adversely affected.

Property Investment

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on
various factors, including but not limited to, prevailing
supply and demand conditions of office building, economic
conditions of Mainland China as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to
look for new tenants within a short period of time or procure
new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market
rental rates.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business risks (Continued)
Property Investment (Continued)

The Group is required to reassess the fair value of its
investment properties at the end of each reporting period
and the change in fair value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. There is no assurance that changes in
market conditions will continue to generate gains from fair
value changes in investment properties at similar level or at
same level, or there will be no decline in the fair value of the
Group's investment properties.

Investment in Huaneng Shares

Huaneng Shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and are classified as available-for-sale financial asset of the
Group. The dividend income from Huaneng Shares is affected
by various factors which are beyond the Group’s control,
including but not limited to, the results of operation, liquidity
position and dividend policy of Huaneng.

The Group is required to reassess the fair value of Huaneng
Shares at the end of each reporting period and the change
in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. The fair value of the Group’s investment
in Huaneng Shares is measured by the closing bid price of
Huaneng'’s A-Share.

The closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-Share may be volatile
and is affected by various factors which are beyond the
Group's control, including but not limited to, the results of
operation of Huaneng, investor sentiment or confidence in
the stock market, and changes in economic conditions of
Mainland China.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2016, the economic growth momentum
of Mainland China is anticipated to continue to be slow. The
competitive operating environment and deteriorated credit
risk in Mainland China created great challenge to our banking
and micro credit businesses. The Group will continue to focus
on asset quality control and put more efforts to recover non-
performing loans of its micro credit business.

The Group will gradually expand its insurance business in
Hong Kong and Macau through diversification of insurance
products and broaden of distribution channels. The Group
will continue to adopt prudent and swiftly response
underwriting strategies accompanying flexible marketing
technique to seek lower risks and reasonably priced business.
The Group will also continue to optimise the utilisation of
system resources to enhance service quality and efficiency of
its insurance operations.

As an investment-based company with sound financial
position, the Group will continue to develop and enlarge
its financial services business in Greater China region in a
profitable manner and target at investment opportunities
in commercial lending and financing business in Mainland
China.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Weng Ruo Tong, aged 61, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since April 2009, and
served as Vice Chairman of the Company since then until
30 June 2009. He has been subsequently re-designated as
Chairman of the Company since 1 July 2009. He is also the
Chairman of the Executive Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr Weng is a university graduate
and has been engaged in industrial investment, infrastructure
construction and development, capital and corporate
management for a substantial period of time. He has
extensive experience in investments, financing, infrastructure
construction and development, and corporate management.
He has previously assumed the positions of Vice Director of
the Forestry Department of Fujian Province, General Manager
of Fujian Forestry Company, General Manager of Fujian
Investment and Development Corporation and Chairman
of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., the
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is currently the
Chairman of Xiamen International Bank.

Mr Wang Fei, aged 49, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, Vice Chairman and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company since August 2014. Mr Wang
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and a
Doctorate Degree in Economics. He is a Senior Economist
in Mainland China. Mr Wang has extensive experience
in corporate development and management, financial
investment management as well as venture capital
management. He has previously assumed the positions of
the Deputy General Manager of Investment Management
Department of Fujian Investment and Enterprise Corporation,
Deputy General Manager of Development and Research
Department of Fujian International Trust and Investment
Corporation, General Manager of Development Department,
General Manager of Financial Investment Management
Department of Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings
Corporation, Assistant to General Manager of Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., and Chairman
of various venture capital companies. Mr Wang is currently
the Deputy General Manager of Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd. and a Director and the
Chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both of which
are substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr Wang is
currently a Director of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (Stock
code: 601377) and Xiamen King Long Motor Group Co., Ltd.
(Stock code: 600686), both of which are companies listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr Wang is also the Director of
Xiamen International Bank.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Liu Cheng, aged 55, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since June 2013 and
has been re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company following his appointment as the Executive Deputy
General Manager of the Company on 26 August 2014. He
has been appointed as the General Manager, a member of
the Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 27 September 2014. Mr Liu is a Senior
Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive experience
in investment management, corporate management and
logistics management. Mr Liu has previously assumed
the positions of Assistant General Manager and Deputy
General Manager of Fujian Zhong Min International Trade
Development Company, General Manager of Fujian Zhi He
Trading Co., Ltd., Director of the preparatory group for Fujian
Zhong Min Natural Gas Vehicle Filling Station, Leader of the
preparatory group for the urban natural gas project, General
Manager of CNOOC Fujian Gas Co., Ltd., General Manager of
the Gas Investment and Management Division and General
Manager of the Energy Investment and Management Division
of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd.. Mr Liu
is currently the Chairman of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited and Fujian Min Xin Investments Co., Ltd.. He is also a
Director of Vigour Fine Company Limited and Samba Limited,
both of which are substantial shareholders of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Yang Fang, aged 54, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2015. Mr
Yang holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration,
a Master’'s Degree in Engineering and a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Engineering. He is a Senior Engineer in Mainland China.
He has extensive experience in corporate management,
engineering, international trading and financial investment
management.

Mr Yang is currently the General Manager of the Ministry of
Finance Capital of Fujian Investment & Development Group
Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr Yang
has previously assumed the positions of Deputy General
Manager of the Company from November 2002 to December
2005, the Deputy Manager and Deputy General Manager
of Fujian Huafu Technology Trading Company, the General
Manager of Vigour Fine Company Limited, the Deputy
General Manager of Overseas Investment Management
Department of Fujian Investment & Holdings Corporation,
the Leader of the preparatory group for the property
company and the General Manager of Strategic Development
Department of Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings
Corporation, the General Manager of Capital Operation
Department and Financial Investment Management
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Holdings
Corporation. Mr Yang was a Director of Industrial Securities
Co. Ltd. (Stock code: 601377), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from March 2013 to December
2014.



—E—HRFEFIR Annual Report 2015

YT TS N N ;s

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

AT S ()

Lt %L 435 N2015F12 A 18B EEH (£
BARRBIHIERTES - B ERNIFEF L
BB TEUh ST ME A BRI 2 iE L&
RIE #HEBEB LR IEUHNE L
BIATE-REENMBEPREEARBREL
EEHEREHEEE L HEREABEYE
KENEREREEEBEL  UEKANTK
BE SR EBREESEES QAL AEPEH
AES BRI ERE-

BIEAEBRRARAARIERREEZLRERM
HEEEREEARCHERNBRN LKL -
REEETRIERITHEDTHEBEER
EELE LtRENARRITAT=ZRRE
[\ fx B 3R B i AR AR - SROBIRE B A A
REEHLAAMES EHEAMEEHL
BT Bl §5 £ MR B SR1T B 3 R B0 AR AR o

BEELE 415 R2016F3 8308 E X
EAARRRNIERTES - BEERBET
WABRMDABERAR ([BRAE]  FHA
B : 600067) v EEMRLIE  Z AN LIBE
AR5 ET e 82 £ R2004F12 8 A E
WARBETE SR MBI  WK2006F4 7%
ZHEARBARBZEEHRER -BELERE
RERETFTECA R BREAGHER
CHBELECRSEREEBNTMEAHEEZE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Continued)

Mr Liu Lun, aged 43, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 18
December 2015. Mr Liu had completed a Postdoctoral
research study in applied economics at Tehua Postdoctoral
Programme and holds a Certificate of Postdoctoral of Tehua
Postdoctoral Programme. Mr Liu also holds a Doctorate
Degree in Management of Agricultural Economics from China
Agricultural University, a Master's Degree in Management of
Agricultural Economics from Xinjiang Agricultural University
and a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from Shihezi University.
Mr Liu is an Associate Researcher in Finance in Mainland
China.

Mr Liu is currently the Deputy General Manager of
the Ministry of Finance Capital of Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of
the Company. He has previously assumed the positions of
Credit Manager of Credit Department (Project) of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, Xinjiang Branch, the Senior
Manager of Agro-Credit Risk Management Department of
Head Office of Beijing Rural Commercial Bank, the Senior
Researcher of Information Research Department of Yin Tong
Investment Consultant Company, the Deputy County Mayor
of the Government of Jinning Xian, Kunming City, Yunnan and
the General Manager of Strategic Development Department
of Yantai Bank.

Mr Hon Hau Chit, aged 41, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 30
March 2016. Mr Hon is currently the Managing Director of
Citychamp Dartong Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”,
Stock code: 600067), a company listed in the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr Hon joined Citychamp Dartong in December
2004 as Deputy Managing Director and then appointed as
the Managing Director since April 2006. Mr Hon is currently
the Vice Chairman of Fujian Youth Chamber of Commerce,
the Vice Chairman of Development Committee of Fujian
Real Estate Association and a member of Fuzhou Municipal
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ip Kai Ming, aged 64, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since July 1998. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Ip is currently the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Xiamen International
Bank and the Senior Advisor to the Board of Directors of
Luso International Banking Limited. He is a fellow member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, and has over 40 years’ extensive
experience in banking and finance. He is also a Director of
the Macao Chamber of Commerce and the Vice Chairman
of the Executive Board of the Macao Institute of Financial
Services. Mr Ip has a Master of Science Degree in Corporate
Governance and Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist
University.

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, aged 75, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since May 1999. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and was a partner of an international firm of
accountants with which he practised for over 20 years. Mr
Sze is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of
a number of Hong Kong listed companies including China
Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 308), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (Stock Code:
2356), Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
0440), Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 47),
Nanyang Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 212) and Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 188).

Mr So Hop Shing, aged 68, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2004. He is a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr So is a practising solicitor and senior
partner of Tang and So, Solicitors and Notaries. Mr So is the
holder of Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of
London, Master of Laws Degree from the City University of
Hong Kong and The People’s University of China, and Doctor
of Laws Degree from Peking University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Zhang Fan, aged 43, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in August 2013. He graduated from the
Xiamen University in International Finance, holds a Bachelor
of Economics Degree. He is an Economist in Mainland China
and has over 21 years’ extensive experience in financial
management and investment management. He is currently
a Director of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited and Fujian
Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. and the Chairman of Sanming
Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited. He is
also a Director of Samba Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Mr Chan Kwong Yu, aged 45, is the Deputy General Manager
and Financial Controller of the Company, and the Director
and Acting Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr Chan
joined the Company in April 2000 and was appointed as
Deputy Financial Controller in July 2004, Financial Controller
in January 2008 and Deputy General Manager in March 2014
respectively. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in
Accounting, and is a Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is
also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
Technical Specialist of the Institute of Risk Management.
Before joining the Company, Mr Chan has worked for various
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is currently a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and the
Chief Representative of the Fuzhou Representative Office of
the Company and a Director of Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro
Credit Company Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms Wu Yu Qi, aged 50, joined the Company as Group
Chief Auditor in August 2013. She has a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Xiamen University. She is a
Senior Accountant in Mainland China and a Certified Internal
Auditor. She has over 26 years’ extensive experience in risk
management and control, audit, assets management and
financial management. She is currently the Supervisor of
Min Xin Insurance Company Limited and Sanming Sanyuan
District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance for achieving business objectives and sustainable
development of the Company. The Company has adopted the
principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2015 save as disclosed below:

CG Code A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition and Functions

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of nine
members, with three Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.

The composition of the current Board members represent
a balanced mixture of skills, experiences and qualifications.
The Executive and Non-executive Directors have extensive
experiences in financial investment and management,
corporate development and management whilst the three
Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic and professional qualifications and have
experiences in banking, accounting and legal which would
contribute to the long term development of the Company by
bringing in a wide range of business, banking, accounting,
financial and legal experiences to the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition and Functions (Continued)

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) aims at enhancing the Board effectiveness and
corporate governance. Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board
members appropriate to the requirement of the business of
the Company.

The Company has maintained an updated list of Directors and
their roles and functions and whether they are Independent
Non-executive Directors on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The updated biographical details of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual
Report.

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s
overall objectives and strategies, on-going monitoring and
evaluating its operating and financial performance. It also
decides on matters such as annual budgets and business
plans, major transactions, appointment of new Directors, re-
appointment or re-designation of Directors, and dividend and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group's businesses
to senior management under the supervision of the General
Manager and the Executive Committee of the Board.

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made positive and constructive
contributions to the development of the Company’s
strategies and policies through independent, constructive
and informed advices. They gave the Board and the Board
Committees on which they served the benefit of their skills,
expertise and experiences through regular attendance and
active participation.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their
offices held in public companies or organizations and other
major appointments and professional qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Composition and Functions (Continued)

Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to
facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is
invited to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss
or propose at such meetings. Full Board papers or Board
Committee papers will be sent to all Directors or Board
Committee members at least 3 days before the intended
date of the Board meeting or Board Committee meeting.
Management also supplies the Board and the Board
Committees with sufficient information and explanations
so as to enable them to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before the Board and the
Board Committees for review and approval. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to all the Directors and
Board Committee members for their comment and records
respectively.

All Directors can access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Company on a timely basis.
Furthermore, management provides all Board members with
monthly updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties under the
Listing Rules. The Board and each Director has separate and
independent access to senior management of the Company.

Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice at the Company'’s expense, if necessary. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against them
arising from corporate activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition and Functions (Continued)

In 2015, five Board meetings and the annual general meeting
for the year 2015 were held. The individual attendance of
each Director is set out below:

2ERH
HiE BT
Number of Meetings
attended/held

HITES

SERLE (FE)
(IEZZBSF/E)
TIGE (FEE)
RS (A HE)
TRELEE
(R2015F12H18H BF1E)
R LA
(201543526 H B 1F)

FHTES

B RE
(R2015F3H26H Z 1T)

BlfmkE
(R2015F12 5180 ZEF)

BAFHTES
SEEEEE
(BERZEELRE)
EREALEL
(#ﬁ@/@?“ 21E)
BREE

Executive Directors
Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman)
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr Wang Fei (Vice Chairman)
Mr Liu Cheng (General Manager)
Mr Li Jin Hua
(resigned on 18 December 2015)
Mr Zhang Rong Hui
(resigned on 26 March 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Mr Yang Fang
(appointed on 26 March 2015)
Mr Liu Lun
(appointed on 18 December 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Sze Robert Tsai To (Chairman of
the Audit Committee)
Mr Ip Kai Ming (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee)
Mr So Hop Shing

20155

BRBFXKE

E=EE 2015 Annual
Board General
Meeting Meeting
5/5 1/1
4/5 11
5/5 1/1
3/4 11
3@ A3 B
N/A N/A
5/5 1/1

1/1 T iE
N/A

5/5 1/1
5/5 1/1
5/5 1/1
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the directors
and employees; and

«  To review the Company’s compliance with the code of
corporate governance and disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity
of Chief Executive) of the Company are held by separate
individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation
of duties regarding management of the Board and the day-
to-day management of the Group’s businesses.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Group. The Chairman ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has delegated the
responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting to the General Manager.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive (Continued)

Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group under the
leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, working with the Executive Committee
and supported by senior management, is responsible
for managing the businesses of the Group, including
implementation of strategies adopted by the Board and
assuming full accountability to the Board for the operations
of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors in 2015.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
and the independence has been assessed in accordance
with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

To further enhance accountability, any re-election of an
Independent Non-executive Directors who have served the
Board for more than nine years will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders of the Company.
The Board will assess the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors and state in the circular the reasons
why the Board considers the Independent Non-executive
Directors are still independent and the recommendation
to shareholders to vote in favor of the re-election of such
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Removal

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office by rotation for re-election by shareholders at an
annual general meeting. In addition, every Director is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
New appointment to fill a causal vacancy is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the next general meeting and
new appointment as an addition to the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the next annual general meeting
of the Company following his appointment respectively.

Pursuant to Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr Weng Ruo Tong, Mr So Hop Shing and
Mr Yang Fang will be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting for the year 2016 (the “2016 AGM").
Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr Liu Lun and Mr Hon Hau Chit will be subject
to retirement by rotation at the 2016 AGM. All of the retiring
Directors have offered themselves for re-election at the 2016
AGM. The biographical details of the retiring Directors will
state in the circular, accompanied by the notice of the 2016
AGM and this Annual Report.

Term of appointment of Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term as required by CG Code A.4.1
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meetings in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

In 2015, the Company has arranged two seminars for the
Directors and senior management with topics covered the
amendments to the Corporate Governance Code and the
updates on Insurance Companies Ordinance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
(Continued)

ZEEHEMANSHEELSESHOT The attendance record of each Director in attending the
seminars is listed out below:

FEBEERER
TR E
HEHRNE Reading
Attending regulatory
seminars updates
BTES Executive Directors
SERLE (F/FE) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) v 4
FIFEE (FEE) Mr Wang Fei (Vice Chairman) v v
B ST (AEACHE) Mr Liu Cheng (General Manager) v v
TEERE Mr Li Jin Hua v/ v
(R2015F12H18H BF L) (resigned on 18 December 2015)
SREEIB I A Mr Zhang Rong Hui A3 A A5
(R2015%3 26 H B (T ) (resigned on 26 March 2015) N/A N/A
FHITES Non-executive Directors
Pl Mr Yang Fang v v/
(R2015F3H26 H Z (F) (appointed on 26 March 2015)
2@ kA& Mr Liu Lun il i A
(FR2015F12518HZ(F) (appointed on 18 December 2015) N/A N/A
BUKBTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
EEMELEAE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To v/ v
ERMBALE Mr Ip Kai Ming v v/
e E Mr So Hop Shing v v
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of the Board
Committees has its terms of reference with defined powers
and authorities given to the Committee members to
discharge their duties.

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive
Directors, namely Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman), Mr Wang
Fei and Mr Liu Cheng. Mr Li Jin Hua was a member of the
Executive committee until his cessation on 18 December
2015. Members of the Executive Committee meet frequently
as and when necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr Sze Robert Tsai To
who was a partner of an international firm of accountants
with which he practiced for over 20 years. The other members
are Mr Ip Kai Ming and Mr So Hop Shing. The Company has
maintained the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on
its website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of
external auditor, reviewing the Group's financial information
and providing oversight of the Group’s financial reporting
and internal control system. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and annual results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
Members of the Audit Committee meet regularly to review
financial reporting and internal control matters and to
perform such duties it has unrestricted access to both
the Company’s external and internal auditors. Sufficient
resources are provided to the Audit Committee to discharge
its duties including but not limited to obtain legal or other
independent professional advice (if necessary) at the
Company's expense.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter
alia, the following:

. reviewed and discussed with external auditor the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2015 and recommended to the Board for approval
respectively;

. reviewed and obtained explanation from management
on the interim and annual results, including causes of
changes from the previous accounting period, effects on
the application of new accounting policies, compliance
with the Listing Rules and relevant legislation;

. reviewed the activities of the Group's internal audit
function and its findings and recommendations as laid
down in the internal audit reports;

. reviewed the internal audit plan for the year 2015;

. considered and recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
Company's external auditor;

. reviewed the audit plan for the year 2015;

. considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget;

. held meetings with the external auditor in the absence
of management to discuss any material audit issues; and

. reviewed and approved the proposed amendments to
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

In 2015, the Audit Committee held two meetings, and the
attendance records of individual committee members are set
out below:

SRR

i FE /R T
Number of
Meetings
attended/held
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Mr Sze Robert Tsai To (Chairman) 2/2
Mr Ip Kai Ming 2/2
Mr So Hop Shing 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five committee
members and the majority of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive
Director, the other members are Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, Mr
So Hop Shing, Mr Liu Cheng and Mr Chan Kwong Yu. The
Company has maintained the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee on its website and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy, and the formulation and review of the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed, inter alia, the following:

reviewed the proposal for salary adjustments to its
employees and recommended the same to the Board for
approval;

reviewed the proposal for payment of bonus to senior
management and recommended the same to the Board
for approval; and

reviewed the Directors’ fees for the year of 2015 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.
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HE G ER (E DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)
o E B e (4) Remuneration Committee (Continued)
FEBER2015FERITT —RgH In 2015, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, and
I B M E sy T the attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

BEARE
o FE /R 1T
Number of
Meetings
attended/held
HEREBEE (£E) Mr Ip Kai Ming (Chairman) 11
s EMEEAE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 1/1
BREEE Mr So Hop Shing 1/1
Bt Mr Liu Cheng 1/1
PRETFEE Mr Chan Kwong Yu 1/1

EBEE HFMF B R ER EERE
WEIRAEBGETEHRRTEI10-HE
2015F12A831H AR AL FafEEA
B eRMEEEFBUOT

Details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed on an
individual basis and are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The remuneration payable
to senior management of the Company by band for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was as follows:

A

Number of

Individuals

B 17T - 75 #500,0007T HK$1 - HK$500,000 1
75 #£1,500,001 7T — }% #£2,000,0007T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1
% 13,000,001 7T - 7 #3,500,0007C HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 2
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four committee
members and the majority of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Mr Weng Ruo Tong, the Chairman of the Company, and
the other members are three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr Ip Kai Ming, Mr Sze Robert Tsai To and Mr
So Hop Shing. The Company has maintained the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee on its website and
the website of the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board, and assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed,
inter alia, the following:

. reviewed and assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors;

. reviewed and recommended to the Board for
appointment of new Directors;

. reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting for the year 2015; and

. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge and experiences)
of the Board in accordance with the Board Diversity
Policy and reported to the Board annually.

In 2015, the Nomination Committee held two meetings, and
the attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

SRR

i FE /R T
Number of
Meetings
attended/held

SERLLE (ZE)
EREALE
EBMEEE
BERELE

4.0

Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 2/2
Mr Ip Kai Ming 2/2
Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 2/2
Mr So Hop Shing 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
AND SHARE INTERESTS

Compliance with Model Code

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard as set out in Appendix 10 - Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules. All Directors of the
Company have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

Share Interests of Directors

Details of Directors’ interests in shares of the Company as at
31 December 2015 have been disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests” in the Report of the Directors of this
Annual Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements on a going concern basis, with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary. The
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”)
and also the accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in Hong Kong. Appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently; judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. A statement by
the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their
reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent
Auditor’s Report in this Annual Report.

The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s position
and prospects in annual reports, interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective internal control to safeguard
the Group's assets.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely
eliminate the risk of system failure; and to assist in the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

Internal Audit plays a major role in monitoring the internal
control of the Group and reports regularly to the Audit
Committee and the General Manager and has direct access to
the Board. It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of
the Group’s activities and internal controls. It also conducts
special audits of areas of concern identified by the Audit
Committee or senior management. The Audit Committee
has free and direct access to the Head of Internal Audit
Department without reference to the Chairman or senior
management.

In 2015, the Board, through the Audit Committee and
Internal Audit Department, conducted an annual review of
the Group’s internal control system. The annual review was
coordinated by the Group's Internal Audit Department, and
the Internal Audit Department has carried out independent
examination and other post-assessment work on the
review process and results after self-assessment by senior
management and each business and operational unit. The
annual review of internal control system for the year 2015 had
been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees paid or
payable to the external auditor for statutory audit services,
attestation work (in relation to interim financial statements
issued by the Company), professional services for tax and
consultancy services were HK$2,523,000, HK$400,000 and
HK$140,000 respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Company. In 2015, the Company Secretary
has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a General Meeting (the “GM”)

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the members having a right
to vote at general meetings may request Directors of the
Company to call a GM of the Company.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the GM;

(b) may consist of several documents in like form;

(c) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(d) must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it; and

(e) must sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors to proceed to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request. Such GM must be held
on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the GM.

If the Directors fail to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request, the shareholders
who requested the GM, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the GM. Any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
the receipt of the request.

A GM so convened by the shareholder(s) concerned shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s)
concerned by reason of the failure of the Directors
duly to convene a meeting shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Moving a resolution at an annual general meeting
(the “AGM”)

Shareholders of the Company may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of AGM, notice of resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the AGM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the AGM to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or electronic form; (ii) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received by the
Company not later than 6 weeks before AGM to which the
request relates; or if later, the time at which notice is given of
that meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

The Company is required to give notice of a resolution at the
Company’s own expense to each shareholder of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same manner
as the notice of AGM; and at the same time as, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of AGM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies Ordinance.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at General Meetings

If shareholders of the Company would like to express their
views to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or
other business to be dealt with at a GM, they can submit
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to that matter or business and request the Company
to circulate their written statement to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of GM. Such shareholders
must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the
meeting; or

(b) atleast 50 shareholders having the relevant right to vote
at the meeting.

The shareholders having the right to vote mean (i) in relation
to a proposed statement concerning a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution, a right to vote on that resolution at the
meeting to which the requests relate; and (ii) in relation to
any other statement, a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requests relate.

The request to circulate a statement (i) may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (ii)
must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which the request relates.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at General Meetings (Continued)

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company will circulate the statement
to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM and the proposed
statement is received in time to enable the Company to
send a copy of the statement at the same time as it gives
notice of AGM. Otherwise, the shareholders concerned
have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned not later than
7 days before the AGM;

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an AGM),
the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
circulating the statement submitted by the shareholders
concerned not later than 7 days before the GM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 580 to 582 of the Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than
a retiring Director of the Company for election as a
Director of the Company at a GM. The procedures for such
proposal are available on the website of the Company
(www.minxin.com.hk).

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy aims at enhancing the efficiency of communication
amongst shareholders, the Board and senior management
of the Company through various official channels so that the
shareholders can access the Company’s public information
equally in a timely manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted a new Articles of Association in
order to align with the Companies Ordinance and for house-
keeping purpose by passing a special resolution at the AGM
held on 18 June 2015.

The new Articles of Association is posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
the information of a Director of the Company required to be
disclosed since the publication of 2015 interim report of the
Company is set out below:

Mr Ip Kai Ming, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, had resigned as the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of LIB with effect from 29 January 2016 and then
appointed as the Senior Advisor to the Board of Directors of
LIB with effect from 23 March 2016.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in financial services, insurance, property
development and investment and strategic investment. The
principal activities and other particulars of the principal
subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 36 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group for the year are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the
Group and other business review as required to be disclosed
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a
fair review of the business and a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, is set out in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 6 to 21 of this Annual Report. The above
two sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out on page 59.

The Board of the Company has resolved to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on 16 June 2016 (“2016 AGM") the payment of a final
dividend of 5 HK cents per share totaling HK$22,971,433 for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: final dividend of
5 HK cents per share totaling HK$22,971,433). The proposed
dividend, if approved, will be paid on or before 8 July 2016.

RECORD DATE

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2016 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 14 June 2016 to
Thursday, 16 June 2016, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM, all completed
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 13 June 2016.



BT A5 Ry R OB T A

BUREE E2015F12A31H IFFER KRR
BEFANRKREE2016FHRRBFAS
FHOER A RIEE o AR E W EUEDR R B
BRER KR #E2016F6 4228 (£ H
=)E2016F6HA23H (EEM) BEHE
MAEN BEREROKBFELFE-A
HREZERKKRBARE  MBEEZORDBE
FPXMERBBEKRE  KiER2016F6H21H

(EHZ) THF4E300 BIR EAR R A RD B
FELREBEEZEGREANEELFE
it BEE 2R ABER1835RA FAR 02212 -

AEEBEREMBFER 2 XE  AEFE
MAE AR RR

BN E4E RESH -
ot 45 4

KEBRARBREFERNZ EEEE
MNE63IE MirE P HR&REE3S@) °

ok

Y 2E - W 2SN B

REE 2 WE - HBE LR EE
B ERERTEI5-

/

X LIPS £

A Z
AEBRHAEZEEMEE DA BHNF200
B

e A

RRaElZRAFERE
30(a) °

Ay {73 TE 2 et

R2015F12A831H AR AR IE R FHEH
FoM R TEABE 2RI HEEAEE
554,244,0007T (20144 : 75 569,541,000
JC) °

FNEAM R TE

—E—HRFEFIR Annual Report 2015

G
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2015 is subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the 2016 AGM. For the purpose of determining
the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
22 June 2016 to Thursday, 23 June 2016, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
completed transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 June 2016.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and
5.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 63 and in Note 35(a) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group is set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group
are set out on page 200.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2015, calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance
amounted to HK$554,244,000 (2014: HK$569,541,000).
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DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors who have served the Company
during the year and up to the date of this report are set out
on page 2 of this Annual Report.

In accordance with Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr Weng Ruo Tong, Mr So Hop
Shing and Mr Yang Fang will retire by rotation at the 2016
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 88 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr Liu Lun and Mr Hon Hau Chit, who have
been appointed as Non-executive Directors of the Company
on 18 December 2015 and 30 March 2016 respectively shall
hold office until the 2016 AGM and, being eligible, offers
themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2016 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange and the Company considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent as
defined in the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the Directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are set out below:

Mr Liu Cheng

Mr Zhang Fan

Mr Chan Kwong Yu
Mr Guo Xiang

Mr Ge Qing

Mr Qian Wen Rong
Mr Shiung An Tai

Ms Chen Fen

Mr Zhang Rong Hui*
Mr Chen Gao*

Mr Chan Kwok Kwong*

* These Directors had resigned during the year
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules
were as follows:

REALREBROZHR
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company

EERQFE
BIORAZBSLH
BERGEHE Percentage of
BEEnA EatE Number of  the issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held of the Company

E R (EPNF
Ip Kai Ming Personal interest 666,000 0.14%

Br EXETIEFEE N 720158128318 |E
ARBEERITRAEBEEARR RIS ET
IR EE (2B S KRGO SEXVIBATHE
MER)NKRMD BEEAROESTFHEEE
AR BEE S RS GH F3528E TH T
&M AT AR sk kAR BRI ESFRIZENE AR
AR ERIARRE MARBIZES
HREZEBH18HNA T 2 F LR FERINE
BETAENARBRRRNESKBITE
ZERER o

AREREK B AR R FAETA MRS ER
FIERMARBERAERBAR A SEME
A A B8 2 B 47 3K 18 55 1 BUAS Al 25 2 15

22
xR

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors of the
Company have confirmed that they did not have any interests
in business which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the year as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACT

No transaction, arrangement or contract (that is significant in
relation to the Company’s business) to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company or an entity connected with a Director had,
directly or indirectly, a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that,
subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director of the
Company is entitled to be indemnified by the Company
against all costs, charges, losses, expense and liabilities
incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his duties
or in relation thereto. The Company has arranged directors
and officers liability insurance for its Directors and Officers.
The terms and extent of the coverage are reviewed and
renewed annually.
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F % R RE £ SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

R2015F 128318 1 IREBEARQRRIZEFES R At 31 December 2015, substantial shareholders (other than
HERPIEBKR[EATHEFONELME Directors and Chief Executive of the Company) who had

AR R ARG R AB AR (D R S gOK interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
BZEERR (RRARIEERITHAHKRIN) shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
N to be kept by the Company under to section 336 of the SFO

were as follow:

EERE
BBITRA
BO
Percentage of

EERMEE theissued share

NRER B Number of capital of the
Name of Corporation Notes shares held Company
Samba Limited (“Samba”) 1 144,885,000 31.54%

EEERAR([EE])
Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour Fine") 1 220,580,600 48.01%

EREREREEEEREAAR([RBEKRESHE])
Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG") 2 220,580,600 48.01%

BHEEREEEGR LA ([BWER])
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (“Citychamp”) 3 51,040,000 11.11%

EREBAERAR ([ERBE])
Sincere View International Limited (“Sincere View”") 3 51,040,000 11.11%

HEBERQA ([FHAL])

Full Day Limited (“Full Day”) 5 51,040,000 11.11%

L

Hon Kwok Lung 4 51,040,000 11.11%

MORR

Lam Suk Ying 4 51,040,000 11.11%
-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
(Continued)

Notes:

1. 144,885,000 shares of the Company was held by Samba.
Vigour Fine was the controlling shareholder of Samba and
was deemed to be interested in the 144,885,000 shares of
the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine also directly held
75,695,600 shares of the Company.

2.  FIDG directly held the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine
and was deemed to be interested in the 220,580,600 shares of
the Company.

3. 51,040,000 shares of the Company was held by Citychamp.
Citychamp was the controlled corporation of each of Sincere
View and Full Day and each of Sincere View and Full Day
was deemed to be interested in the 51,040,000 shares of the
Company.

4. Mr Hon Kwok Lung (“Mr Hon") held the entire issued share
capital of Full Day and was the controlling shareholder of
Sincere View, Mr Hon was deemed to be interested in the
51,040,000 shares of the Company. Ms Lam Suk Ying, the
spouse of Mr Hon, was deemed to be interested in the
51,040,000 shares of the Company.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the
ordinary shares of the Company. At 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company) who had short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had renewed the annual
management agreement with Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whereby Vigour Fine agreed
to provide management services to the Company which
included the provision of Directors to the Board of the
Company. A management fee of HK$1,880,000 had been paid
to Vigour Fine during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (Continued)

Messrs Wang Fei, Liu Cheng and Li Jin Hua (who had resigned
as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from
18 December 2015) deemed to be interested in the above
transaction by virtue of their being directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, there were no other contracts
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
entered into or existed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significant
entered into between the Company and Vigour Fine, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its
products and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold
less than 30% of its products and services to its 5 largest
customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December
2015 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH INSURANCE COMPANIES
ORDINANCE

Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is subject to the supervision of the Insurance
Authority and is required to comply with the relevant
provision of Insurance Companies Ordinance in relation to
the maximum limit on the amount of gross premium income
received or receivable.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015, which
are not required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules
as connected transactions, are disclosed in Notes 17(b),
17(h), 34(a), 34(b) and 34(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed
in Notes 10(a)(iii), 25 and 34(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to a term loan facility letter entered into between
the Company and a bank in Hong Kong, the Company
undertakes it will procure FIDG, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, to maintain (whether directly or indirectly)
not less than 35% beneficial interests in the issued share
capital of the Company during the term of the term loan
facility letter. Breach of such undertaking will constitute an
event of default and all amounts (including principal and
interest) due and owing by the Company to the bank under
the term loan facility letter shall become immediately due
and payable.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of
the date of this report, the Company had maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2016 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

HONG KONG, 30 March 2016
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Y ST A BRI
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 59 to 199, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

22015412531 H 1F FJ/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
T BT T BT T
Note HKS'000 HKS'000
R Turnover 5 144,075 144,624
N L Total revenues 5 168,574 169,202
E bWz — 5 Other gains - net 6 43,732 2,561
EEWABE Total operating income 212,306 171,763
R EBEERN Net insurance claims incurred and
BEFELAR commission expenses incurred on
& A insurance business 7 (45,164) (35,832)
BEPERREWF S Impairment loss on loans to customers
LB B 18 and interest receivable 22 (136,785) (38,055)
B T Staff costs (31,997) (30,481)
e Depreciation (1,417) (1,343)
EmeEFERX Other operating expenses (18,865) (20,054)
EEBTHARE Total operating expenses (234,228) (125,765)
¥ (FB) BR Operating (loss)/profit 8 (21,922) 45,998
Bl & B AR Finance costs 9 (12,958) (7,016)
BB E N R %28 Share of results of associates 520,900 452,220
R i B A Profit before taxation 486,020 491,202
FT 5% 32 Income tax expense 11 (8,681) (18,515)
AEEEF Profit for the year 12 477,339 472,687
BRE Dividend
—RHIRR B - Final dividend 13 22,971 22,971
Bl JEA
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
AERKREE Basic and diluted 14 103.90 102.89
BREE Dividend per share
—RKHKE — Final dividend 5 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Bt 2201512831 H 1 F/Z  Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
BEFT BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000
AEERF Profit for the year 477,339 472,687
H i 2 & Other comprehensive income
TEEHIBEERER Items that will not be reclassified to
WIEE : income statement:
HEEEEMRFEES Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve
HEBFERIREME Unrealised surplus on revaluation of
EENKREREMAR leasehold building transferred to
investment property 2,852 -
RIEFTSR Deferred income tax (521) -
_____ 2,331 -
HETKEHIEEEIZEK Items that may be reclassified
MWIEE : subsequently to income statement:
AHEERESEMAMEES  Available-for-sale investment
‘ revaluation reserve
ves EEE‘E (#0B%) /RLERAY  Fair value changes (charged)/credited
NEEES to equity (42,280) 318,453
EIEPTISH Deferred income tax 12 -
i @ Release on disposal = (846)
*%Hﬁ?‘ NR)HEZIE#E  Release on dilution of interest in
fEF £ (3] . an associate (18,043) 3,378
FEIRE & AR MM 2 8)  Share of changes in equity of associates
ERESRLENATE Fair value changes credited to
) equity 60,656 239,561
o B [El Release on disposal 1,119 13,894
EEFTS Deferred income tax (15,073) (59,769)
U W 014,671
MEFERES Exchange translation reserve
BE I B AR KREEZ  Exchange differences arising on translation
NEM I EIRKRTESE of the financial statements of foreign
A EFL%%E subsidiaries and associates (164,976) (70,533)
A WNSIE R Dt Release on dilution of interest in
0 associates (22,566) (13,577)
__nsrse)| o)
____(201,151) | 430,561
BIOBRHREEANETEE Other comprehensive income for
Hih 2 mH W= the year, net of tax . (198,820) 430,561
AFEEEZHKNZHARE Total comprehensive income for the year 278,519 903,248
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2015F 1231 H#E  Asat 31 December 2015

2015 2014
T B TF T BT T
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
WX e kR Property, plant and equipment 15 19,061 20,122
EWE Investment properties 16 179,215 165,762
B = n A ) Associates 17 3,263,977 2,945,890
A ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 728,713 770,129
BRPER K EWF B Loans to customers and interest
) receivable 22 1,519 -
BREBREE Reinsurance assets 21 2,479 3,402
TERT X i Prepayments 1,549 -
BRIEFTSHEE Deferred income tax assets 29 6,746 4,281
4,203,259 3,909,586
RBEE Current assets
EERE KA Deferred acquisition costs 19 15,061 12,738
1%[‘@[‘@51% Insurance receivable 20 15,591 10,644
BREBEE Reinsurance assets 21 2,376 2,265
BEEER N EWF B Loans to customers and interest
receivable 22 190,659 275,487
H e KR TR Other debtors 4,268 5,185
AN E ‘ Prepaid taxes 1,253 —
HiEN SR RS Other prepayments and deposits 2,606 905
A ESBEBRRIR Financial assets at fair value through
HNEREE profit or loss 23 8,095 7,194
Be MIBITHEF Cash and bank balances 24 1,432,106 1,353,943
. 1,672,015 1,668,361
DEARBIEHENEE Assets classified as held for sale 25 12,698 =
1,684,713 1,668,361
nREEE Current liabilities
RERE L Insurance contracts 26 53,806 44,479
R B FE AT 3R Insurance payable 27 8,818 6,059
Hip M ARK Kt EM  Other creditors and accruals 25,021 29,411
RITER Bank borrowings 28 113,734 579,097
JE AR EAR 18 Current income tax payable 25,444 26,955
_____ 226,823 685,001
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,457,890 982,360
WEEBRBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 5,661,149 4,891,946
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2015F 12531 H#4E  Asat 31 December 2015

2015 2014
TR EBEFT BT T
Note HKS'000 HKS'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank borrowings 28 502,116 -
REE % Insurance contracts 26 33,844 27,707
EEFSHEE Deferred income tax liabilities 29 41,960 48,230
_____ 377,920 | 73337
EERE Net assets 5,083,229 4,816,009
[ Share capital 30(a) 891,135 891,135
HittfEHE S Other reserves 1,501,099 1,716,858
= &Rl Retained profits
ORI B Proposed dividend 22,971 22,971
HAh Others 2,666,165 2,185,045
REME2EWEER Amount recognised in other
ERERKREH comprehensive income and
BEHENEE accumulated in equity relating
BEBHIE to assets held for sale 1,859 -
AAREREFEARM Total equity attributable to
fESEE equity holders of the Company 5,083,229 4,816,009
SEE Weng Ruo Tong
o Director
B A& Liu Cheng
o Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

22015412531 H 1F F/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

Hfefifke
Other reserves
HERE it
EXEE REEM EfiEBe HERE  RBREE
i ¥ il xRS leaschold  EEE 1] REER
Bx  HRHEE  Capital HEe REe B2 Investment  buildings  Exchange Total  REEA 2]
Share Share redemption  Statutory General Capital revaluation revaluation translation other  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve feserve  reserves profits equity

#0141 518
HOMEIAIRBEER

EEEHE (FE06)00)

AERREUEEE

b5
“FRENTERR
BERER (FR10)

B
20145128318
ARnT
WHERERE

20145128318

#1551 518
TEERENRESR

%

AERREER
EE( X(g)/
NEREL

HBAAER
HEE (HEe)
B

kS
BENT
BE(
Bz
%
W

R2015512531R

zﬁf*m

mﬁméﬁﬁﬁm

M B
WISFRERE
Eff

20155125314

ERTr  BRTr  BRTA EETR ERTR ERTn BRTn BRTa BETn ERTn ERTn BRTa
HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO  KKSO0D  HKS000  HKSW00  HKS000

At 1 January 2014 459,429 384,620 47,086 365,524 13309 548,217 60,283 861 175745 1595645 1880658 3935732
Transition to no-par value regime on

3 March 2014 (Note 30(a)(i)) £1706  (384620) (47,086) - - - - - - (31,706) - -
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - - 514671 - (84,110) 430561 472,687 903,248
Dividend = = = = = = S = = - (22971) (2297)
Release on dilution of interest in

an associate (Note 17(c)) - - - (47,248) (6,208) (68,257) - - - (121,713) 121,713 -
Transfers - - - 205,387 38,684 - - - - 2401 (244071 -
At 31 December 2014 891,135 = = 523,663 45,785 479,960 574,954 861 91635  1,716858 2208016 4816009
Representing:
2014 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - - 291 291
Others 891,135 - - 523,663 45,785 479,960 574,954 861 91,635 1716858 2185045 4793038
At 31 December 2014 891,135 = = 523,663 45,785 479,960 574,954 861 91635 1716858 2208016  4816,009
At 1 January 2015 891,135 - - 523,663 45785 479,960 574954 861 91,635 1,716,858 2,208,016 4,816,009
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - - (13,609) 2331 (187,542) (1988200 477,339 278,519
Dividend - - - - - - - - - - (2297) (22.97)
Release on dilution of interest in

associates (Note 17(d) & (q)) - - - (152,012) (22,459)  (133,504) - - - (307,975) 307,975 -
Share of dilution of interest in a

subsidiary held by an

associate (Note 17(e)) - - - - - 11,6712 - - - 11,6712 - 11,6712
Transfers - - - 244,058 37,165 - - - - 281,223 (281,223) -
At 31 December 2015 891,135 - - 615709 60,491 358,128 561,345 3,192 (95,907) 1,502,958 2,689,136 5,083,229
Representing:
Amount recognised in other

comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity relating

to assets held for sale - - - 55 - - - - 1,804 1,859 - 1,859
2015 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - - 29N 29N
Others 891,135 - - 615,654 60,491 358,128 561,345 3,192 (97,711) 1,501,099 2,666,165 5,058,399
At 31 December 2015 891,135 - - 615709 60,491 358,128 561,345 3,192 (95,907) 1,502,958 2,689,136 5,083,229
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Bt 2201512831 H 1 F/Z  Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
it BEFT B F T
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
BETEHESARHFE  Netcash outflow from operations 33 (28,159) (210,839)
B B Interest received 34,829 39,326
BATFE Interest paid (13,511) (5,523)
ENHIE Tax paid (19,687) (27,549)
REEBTHRESR Net cash outflow from operating
b activities (26,528) (204,585)
REEH Investing activities
RERBREEEEIERT Placement of bank deposits pursuant to
i 7 12 I]RITFE R insurance regulatory requirements (7,434) (1,915)
RRRIIEIBER Withdrawal of bank deposits with original
=@ A Z|ITIFK maturity over three months 11,023 2,356
B —RKEEE AR Formation of an associate (1,150) -
BAMEHESBEE  Purchase of available-for-sale financial
assets (864) -
BAME- *}%%%&5&1% Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,063) (1,013)
S HSNEI S Dividend received from associates 142,490 199,376
—XKEE D 71%?5%%%3 Loan partially repaid from an
BN associate 5,617 -
BERT—REMEALT  Loan advanced to an unrelated company (239) -
KEETFEMEADY Recovery of loan receivable from
W E R unrelated companies 239 116,326
HEYE W REE  Sale of property, plant and equipment 50 -
REZHESESHRAZEE  Net cash inflow from investing activities 148,669 315,130
MEMRERAFHE Net cash inflow before financing 122,141 110,545
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#H22015%12H31H 1F FJ/Z Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
iR BYFR BT T
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000
LR Financing
HFRITER Bank loans obtained 486,233 639,008
BERITER Bank loans repaid (450,000) (260,000)
BERBFLENK Margin loans obtained 145,451 -
EERETLER Margin loans repaid (145,451) -
RE (FR) ARSI Z  Withdrawal/(placement) of restricted bank
RITHER deposits 337,719 (191,197)
IR E Dividend paid (22,971) (22,971)
BMERERATFE Net cash inflow from financing 350,981 164,840
BERBEEEYIEM  Increase in cash and cash equivalents 473,122 275,385
1A1A&FEZEER Cash and cash equivalents at
HEeZEEY 1 January 887,808 628,620
Exgg o HE Effect of foreign exchange rates changes (35,410) (16,197)
12A318 &% 28 €K Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEY 31 December 1,325,520 887,808
RERBELEEYESE  Analysis of the balances of cash and
iy cash equivalents
Re RBITHET Cash and bank balances 24 1,432,106 1,353,943
IR IR R EESE B  Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant
R AR 2 #R1T to insurance regulatory
A requirements 24 (34,985) (27,551)
BRAIZBITER Restricted bank deposits 24 (48,927) (404,887)
JREEA A 88 =& A Bank deposits with original maturity
ZIRITIF R over three months (22,674) (33,697)
1,325,520 887,808
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in financial services,
insurance, property development and investment and
strategic investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 17th
Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collectively
refer to all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs") and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), and have been aligned with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) came
into operation during the financial year, as a result, there
were changes to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

— available-for-sale financial assets

— financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss

— investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted the following new standards and
amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA which
had insignificant or no effect on these consolidated
financial statements.

— Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans:
HKAS 19 Employee Contributions

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of following
new standards and amendments to standards which
are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31
December 2015 and which have not been early adopted
in these consolidated financial statements:

— HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

— HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

— Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 1

— Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 38 and Amortisation
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Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

ZNER B () FE R A B PR 45 L0 E I Ko 2R A
ERTMEE RARA M IR TIRE
HARBEEBLEFE -

The Group is presently studying the implications of
applying these new standards and amendments to
standards but it is impracticable to quantify the effect
as at the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries (together referred as the “Group”) and the
Group's interests in associates made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at fair
value at the date of acquisition. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s identifiable net
assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
changes in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (Note 2.7(a)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate (Note 2.3(b)). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are reclassified
to the consolidated income statement or transferred
directly to retained profits when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary.

Intra-company transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-company transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
company transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity holders of the Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes
2.18 or 2.19 depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)), unless the investments
are classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.15). The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless they are classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale) (Note 2.15). Under the equity method, the
investments are initially recognised at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair value of the investees’ identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investments (if any). Thereafter,
the investments are adjusted for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the investees’ net
assets and any impairment losses relating to the
investments (Notes 2.4 and 2.9(b)). The consolidated
income statement includes the acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The accounting
policies of the investees have been aligned, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests
in an associate, the Group's interests are reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interests in
an associate are the carrying amount of the investments
under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investments in the associate.

7
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interests in the investees,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (Note 2.7(a)). In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in respect of that investee are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

When the ownership interest in an associate is reduced
but significant influence is retained, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the interest reduced in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in the
consolidated income statement. In addition, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
is reclassified to consolidated income statement where
appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)), unless they are classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.15). The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (Note 2.9(b)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and land use rights held for own use, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of that asset can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying amount
and is recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives at
the following annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

BEBAMNMEE RELORSKFH Leasehold land and Over the unexpired term of
b ki land use rights held the lease
1 P # for own use
BIEBRAEF R L) R R HASK Buildings held for Over the shorter of the
=t+EMEFZ own use unexpired term of the lease
REETE and 30 years
ER R 20% - 50% Computer equipment  20% - 50%
(b) R BE & I ik (b) Reducing balance method

R EER 10% - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 20%

MEERE office equipment
E 20% - 25% Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
EEMNFSGREBRLFEFRAFHNS 2R An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,
AEMMETEERR FEERAE and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An

SREGEAIREEE - S ZBIERE
TLBZ@{??TE (FE#E2.9(b) ) °

asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9(b)).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are land or buildings, or both
which are owned or held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the
companies within the Group. They comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-
by-property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease of land
classified as investment property is accounted for as if it
was a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at their
costs, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Investment
property that is being redeveloped for continuing use
as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair
value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement as part of “Other gains — net”.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

When a property held for own use is reclassified to
investment property following a change in its use,
any differences arising at the date of reclassification
between the carrying amount of the property held for
own use immediately prior to the reclassification and
its fair values measured in accordance with Note 2.5 is
recognised as below:

(@) If the carrying amount of the property is increased
as a result of the revaluation, the increase shall be
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve.

(b) If the carrying amount of the property is decreased
as a result of the revaluation, the decrease shall be
recognised in the income statement.

On subsequent disposal of the investment property,
the revaluation surplus recognised in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve may be transferred directly
to retained profits.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as a property held for own use and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its deemed
cost for subsequent accounting in accordance with Note
2.:58

2.7 Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Initial recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises financial assets on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price
plus, in case of financial assets not held at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Transaction costs of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in the income statement
immediately.

(b) Classification and measurement
(i) At fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments
in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market
price and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets held for trading are financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial assets that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit taking.

Derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) that
do not qualify for hedge accounting (Note 2.8) are
accounted for as trading instruments. Derivatives are
initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative
contracts are entered into by the Group and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair values. Changes
in their fair values are recognised immediately in the
income statement within “Other gains — net”.

79



380

B{E5&@AMR 2 8 Min Xin Holdings Limited

o

OB

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(\o)

(i) HRFEEBERINIR(E)

TREEEA NERRIAHERRIETE
RERAFEBBBRRIIK:

- REEEANSMERAFEER FF
R 28 X

—  ZIEE B ESAR K AT R E
EEERTERE -

FHRTREERS —BEAZEKRALN
TETR AEEABZBESKE L
EES—BERAFEEBBERIIKNE
BEE FRIF:

— BASRTETAGA EAMARER
SREERENRS R &

- BBMARTETARERMEEAND
PR IER -

EHBHNEREELREAFET
fR-AFEEDHREEINAELHAHENIE
BROTEMEE-FRIRN-RHE
B HERFRIBFREREENZR
REEHEIABRRA [ HEMlas—
FEER A e B B A AR SR B W BR R IR
MENRELRERaRANERS [H
il WA | BB 53 o

EHBRNEREES RIHFEEXE
R ERAE T _EARNER 8D
BRRBEE-

(\o)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) At fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when:

— the assets are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis; or

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise.

If a financial asset contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the Group may designate the entire hybrid
contract as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss unless:

— the embedded derivative(s) does not significantly
modify the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the financial asset; or

— the separation of the embedded derivative(s) from
the financial assets is prohibited.

Financial assets under this category are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are included in the income statement
within “Other gains - net” in the period in which they
arise. Upon disposal, the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying value is included in
the income statement within “Other gains - net” in
the period in which they arise. Dividend income is
recognised in the income statement as part of “Other
revenues” when the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets if they are either held for trading or are expected
to be realised within twelve months from the reporting
date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any (Note 2.9(a)(i)).

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets except for those with maturities greater than
twelve months after the reporting date or are expected
to be realised after twelve months from the reporting
date which are classified as non-current assets.

(iii) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(ii)).

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets except for those with maturities greater than
twelve months after the reporting date which are
classified as non-current assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(iv) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other three
categories above. They include financial assets intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time, but which
may be sold in response to need for liquidity or changes
in the market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value
except for investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried
at cost less impairment losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(iii)).
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains or losses on monetary items such
as debt securities which are recognised in the income
statement.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold,
gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value,
and the accumulated fair value adjustments which
are previously recognised in other comprehensive
income shall be reclassified from equity to the income
statement.

Financial assets in this category are classified as non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the financial assets within twelve months from the
reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(d) Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices (bid prices) at the reporting date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
guoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or
a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate
of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management's
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market
rate at the reporting date applicable for an instrument
with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market data at the
reporting date.

2.8 Hedge Accounting
The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for

derivatives which may qualify as eligible cash flow
hedges or fair value hedges.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets
(a) Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the assets (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— the Group granting to the issuer or obligor, for
economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulty, a concession that a lender would not
otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the issuer or obligor
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

— observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial asset in the group, including:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
(i) Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment loss on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(ii) Held-to-maturity

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on held-to-maturity financial assets carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the financial
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a held-
to-maturity financial asset has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment loss on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the equity securities below their cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired.

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that
had been recognised in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to the income statement. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in the income statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset, where the effect of discount is
material.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in statement of comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. Furthermore, any further declines in
value after an impairment loss had been recognised in
the income statement should be recognised immediately
in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an available-
for-sale debt securities increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the reversal of impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is an indication that a non-financial asset is impaired.
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and
are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for a non-financial asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement for the amount by which the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously
recognised impairment losses on other assets are
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset,
however not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
amortisation or depreciation), had no impairment loss
been recognised against the asset in prior periods.
Reversal of impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

(c) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34
“Interim Financial Reporting”, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (Notes 2.9(a) and 2.9(b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least
10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur.

2.11 Insurance contracts
(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group are
casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of causing harm to third
parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages
covered include both contractual and non-contractual
events. The typical protection offered is designed
for employers who become legally liable to pay
compensation to injured employees (employers’ liability)
and for individual and business customers who become
liable to pay compensation to a third party for bodily
harm or property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate
the Group’s customers for damage suffered to their
properties or for the value of property lost. Customers
who undertake commercial activities on their premises
could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings
caused by the inability to use the insured properties in
their business activities (business interruption cover).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the
income statement as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or
third parties damaged by the contract holders. They
include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and
arise from events that have occurred up to the reporting
date even if they have not yet been reported to the
Group. The Group does not discount its liabilities for
unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated
using the input of assessments for individual cases
reported to the Group and statistical analyses for the
claims incurred but not reported, and to estimate the
expected ultimate cost of more complex claims that may
be affected by external factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with
and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life
of the contracts as premium is earned.

(c) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to
the income statement initially by writing off DAC and
subsequently by establishing a provision for losses
arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision). Any DAC written off as a result of this test
cannot subsequently be reinstated.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses on one
or more contracts issued by the Group and that meet
the classification requirements for insurance contracts
in Note 2.10 are classified as reinsurance contracts
held. Contracts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance
contracts entered into by the Group under which the
contract holder is another insurer (inwards reinsurance)
are included as “Insurance contracts” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that
are dependent on the expected claims and benefits
arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with
the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance
with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognised as an expense over the
terms of reinsurance contracts and are included as
“Insurance payable” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment
on a regular basis. If there is objective evidence that
the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its
recoverable amount and recognises that impairment
loss in the income statement. The Group gathers the
objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired
and calculates the impairment losses using the same
processes adopted for loans and receivables as described
in Note 2.9(a)(i).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance
contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due.
These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers
and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the insurance receivable to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement. The Group gathers
the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is
impaired and calculates the impairment losses using the
same processes adopted for loans and receivables as
described in Note 2.9(a)(i).

(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell
(usually damaged) property acquired in settling a
claim (salvage). The Group may also have the right to
pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is
the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when the
liability is settled. The allowance is the amount assessed
that can be recovered from the action against the liable
third party.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual ownership right existed. The premiums paid
for the land use rights held for development for sale
are classified as inventories in accordance with HKAS
2 “Inventories” and measured at lower of cost and
net realisable value. Land use rights are transferred
to properties under development for sale upon
commencement of development.

2.13 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are included in
current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties
sold in the ordinary course of business less estimated
variable selling expenses and anticipated costs to
completion, or by management’s estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

Development costs of properties comprise land use
rights, construction costs, capitalised finance costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period of a normal operating cycle. On completion,
the development costs of properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

2.14 Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are completed
properties remaining unsold at the reporting date and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development cost attributable to the
unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties
sold in the ordinary course of business less estimated
variable selling expenses, or by management’s estimates
based on prevailing market conditions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held
for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount is recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through a continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for
sale, the carrying amounts of the non-current assets (and
all individual assets and liabilities in the disposal group)
shall be measured in accordance with applicable HKFRSs.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets, financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries and associates),
insurance contracts and investment properties, even
if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for
sale, or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale no longer met the recognition criteria
stated above, the Group measures that asset at the lower
of its carrying amount before that asset was classified as
held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation
or revaluation that would have been recognised had
that asset not been classified as held for sale, and its
recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent
decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to
be classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not to
sell.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less impairment losses, if any.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments
with original maturity of three months or less from the
date of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.18 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

2.19 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with Note 2.20, creditors and payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the guarantees on the date that the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of the present value of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised. Any changes in the liabilities relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Where there are a number
of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow of economic benefits with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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(Continued)
2.21 Provisions (Continued)

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.22 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of economic
benefits occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the
inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.23 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss in the income statement.
Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
investment revaluation reserve.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

— income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates, unless
these average exchange rates are not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing at the transaction dates. In such case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from
equity to the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

2.24 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case they are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it
is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.6, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of that investment property at its carrying value at
the reporting date unless that investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in that investment property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other case, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on the following basis provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount can be measured reliably:

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income.

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
installments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(d) Short-term insurance contracts

Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to
unexpired risks at the reporting date is reported as the
unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before
deduction of commission.

(e) Management fee

Management fee is recognised upon the provision of
services.

(f) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the risks and rewards
of the respective properties are transferred to the
purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers and collectability of
related receivables is reasonably assured.

2.27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceased
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or completed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (including those for leasehold land) net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease periods.

2.29 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. These pension plans are defined
contribution schemes which the Group pays fixed
contributions and has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
services rendered in the current and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Share-based compensation

An associate of the Group sets up a cash-settled share-
based payment plan, namely Share Appreciation Rights
(“SAR"). According to the plan, SAR is not vested until
fulfilling services in the vesting period and meeting
required performance. The changes in fair value of
liability incurred have been recognised in the income
statement by that associate.

(e) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy without
realistic possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the reporting date are
discounted to present value.



(\o)

—E—HRFEFIR Annual Report 2015

R e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[\

A& -
30 43 510 e B

ERFAMBERRIMOLE D E RS
DHERE REMARNEERST
BEREBRHNTEER T B BB
EREZEMBERSEERTAEE
W ARIER ME - A RFRZERED
A e B R 3R -

SR mEM S - R EAREE DB
NEE ED BB RULBERERE
EmSRELEE LERFLEE TP
BRI E AR - ARG & B R RS
ZITEA R EBRIRME 7 E AR
BRON - WIRME R EXRVEE D B RT A
REBD I FELE - QIR F &2 70 50 A] gE
@ ymtto

Ve

2.31 B AR

DIRFARBEREEANKREERS

TERLE DR AR A AR SE B K AR 5] # Bt

BHRERANINEBE-

2.32 B Wk Oy

ERFIALRE TS RMANT - Bl S50

AEBEB@EEZALTHER-

(a) FATHHAFRERKBWE HHE
AREEBR@EE Mz AL:

(i) BIAREE AR RS
1#:

(i) BAEEEEATEN N

(i) /AKREXANEEFARNE
2EBRABHKE -

o

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.30 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products or services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved for distribution.

2.32 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.32 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or a joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in Note 2.32(a).

(vii) a person identified in Note 2.32(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
in these consolidated financial statements. The
application of assumptions and estimates means
that any changes of them, either due to changes of
management’s judgement or the evolvement of the
actual circumstances, would cause the Group’s financial
position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
believes that the assumptions and estimates that have
been made in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are appropriate and that these
consolidated financial statements therefore present
fairly the Group’s financial position and results in all
material respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are discussed below.

(a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment properties
held by the Group is current prices in an active market
for similar lease or other contracts. In the absence of
such information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In
making this judgement, the Group considers information
including current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted
to reflect those differences or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those prices.
As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the Group's
investment properties was approximately HK$179.22
million (Note 16).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Investment in XIB

The Company holds approximately 10.6289%
shareholding in XIB. The Company considered that it
has the ability to exercise significant influence over
the financial and operating policy decisions of XIB
through its two representatives on the board of directors
of XIB as well as the participation in policy-making
processes through the representatives in committees
set up by the board of directors of XIB even though the
Company holds less than 20% of the voting power of
XIB. Accordingly, the Company considers that XIB will
continue to be classified as an associate of the Company
and the Company’s interest in XIB will continue to be
accounted for using equity method in accordance with
the HKFRSs (Note 17).

(c) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess
impairment losses regularly, and would further assess
impairment losses when there are indications of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from an
individual loan, observable data indicating that there
has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group (e.g., payment delinquency or
default), or national or local economic conditions that
correlated with defaults on assets in the group. The
individual impairment loss is based upon best estimate
of the present value of cash flows which are expected
to be received discounted at the original effective
interest rate. When assessing the impairment losses
of a loan portfolio under the collective evaluation
method, management of the Group uses estimates
based on historical loss experience, which subjects to
adjustments according to observable data to reflect the
current economic conditions, for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment
similar to those in the portfolio when estimating
expected future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and
timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimated and
actual loss experience. As a practical expedient, the
Group may assess the impairment losses of a loan
portfolio under the collective evaluation method on the
basis of the market historical experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts, estimates
have to be made for both the expected ultimate costs
of claims reported at the reporting date and for the
expected ultimate costs of claims incurred but not
reported (“IBNR”) at the reporting date. It may take a
significant period of time before the ultimate claims
costs can be established with certainty and for some
type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of the
insurance liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The ultimate costs of outstanding
claims are estimated by using a range of standard
actuarial claims projection techniques, such as the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is
that past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate
claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the
development of paid and incurred losses, average cost
per claim and claim numbers based on the observed
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by
accident year, as well as by significant business lines
and claim types. Large claims are usually separately
addressed, either by being reserved at the face value if
loss adjustor estimates or separately projected in order
to reflect their future development. The assumptions
used are those implicit in the historical claims
development data on which the projections are based.
Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the
extent to which past trends may not apply in future
(for example to reflect one-off occurrence, changes
in external or market factors such as public attitudes
of claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims
inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as
internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions
and claims handling procedures), so as to arrive at the
estimated ultimate costs of claims that present the likely
outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking
into account of all the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Current income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amounts of the provision for income tax
and the timing of the payment of the related income tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
provisions for current income tax and deferred income
tax in the period in which such determination is made.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had deferred income
tax liabilities of approximately HK$41.96 million (Note
29). The deferred income tax liabilities will increase or
decrease by approximately HK$1.48 million if the actual
applicable tax rate differs by 1%.

(f) Critical accounting estimates and judgement
of an associated financial institution

The Group’s major associated financial institution, XIB
Group, is principally conducted banking business in
Mainland China and Macau (Note 17). In preparing
its statutory consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards, certain
critical accounting estimates and judgement have been
applied as described below:

—  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets are determined by XIB Group
using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used
include discounted cash flows analysis and models.
To the extent practical, models use only observable
data, however areas such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty), volatilities and correlations require
management of XIB Group to make estimates. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect reported
fair values of financial instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(f) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

— Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess
impairment losses regularly, and would further assess
impairment losses when there are indications of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from an
individual loan, observable data indicating that there
has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group (e.g., payment delinquency or
default), or national or local economic conditions that
correlated with defaults on assets in the group. The
individual impairment loss is based upon best estimate
of the present value of cash flows which are expected
to be received discounted at the original effective
interest rate. When assessing the impairment losses
of a loan portfolio under the collective evaluation
method, management of XIB Group uses estimates
based on historical loss experience, which subjects to
adjustments according to observable data to reflect the
current economic conditions, for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment
similar to those in the portfolio when estimating
expected future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and
timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimated and
actual loss experience.

— Valuation of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment has
been estimated using a market comparison approach
by an independent professional valuer. Based on the
market ratio (e.g., price/earning and price/book ratios)
of a number of listed companies engaged in similar
industries as the investee and the investee’s historical
financial information, management of XIB Group
makes estimates and judgement on the appropriate
adjustments required to reflect the circumstances of
the investee, including the liquidity discount applicable
to the paid-up capital of the investee as compared to
those of the shares of a listed company, for fair value
estimation purposes. The fair value changes is accounted
for in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
investment revaluation reserve.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposure to these risks, as well
as its objectives, policies and processes for managing
and the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group's investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group's liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the
Group within a manageable risk level. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

The Board, representing the interest of shareholders, is
the highest decision making authority of the Group and
has the ultimate responsibility for risk management.
The Board has adopted procedures for evaluating and
approving significant investment decisions. Given the
nature of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, their
risk exposures are monitored by the Group primarily on a
qualitative basis.

The General Manager (“GM”) is responsible for managing
the Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed
risk management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board. The other members of the management
team assist the GM in fulfilling his responsibilities for the
day-to-day management of risks.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also
provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation
of duties throughout the organisation which helps to
promote appropriate internal control environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages such risks.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the
very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random
and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual numbers and amounts of claims will
vary from year to year from the level established using
statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

(i)  Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the increase
in number of cases coming to court that were inactive
or latent for a long period of time. Estimated inflation is
also a significant factor due to the long period typically
required to settle these cases.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i)  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type
and amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right to re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it
can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the
payment of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also
entitle the Group to pursue third parties for payment of
some or all costs (subrogation). Unless the legislation
requires, the Group's strategy limits the total exposure of
any individual policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net insurance losses more
than the prescribed amount. In addition to the overall
reinsurance program, additional reinsurance protection
for any individual risk will be arranged when necessary.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the

carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and
net of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:

2015
- B
EEER kR
5B General Accident Hit k)
Motor liability and health Others Total
BYEFT BEFT EBEFT BEEFT EBETT
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
EY ] Gross
Bk Hong Kong 23,838 41,810 341 101 66,090
R Macau 1,679 693 1,228 17,960 21,560
RRETHE £E Total insurance liabilities, gross 25,517 42,503 1,569 18,061 87,650
FH Net
A Hong Kong 21,898 40,259 341 64 62,562
R Macau 1,515 675 1,170 16,873 20,233
RBEFEE 38 Total insurance liabilities, net 23,413 40,934 1,511 16,937 82,795
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MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) EEMEEREEEE (E) (i)  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)
2014
—i =)
ERER REER
5B General  Accident Hity ke
Motor liability and health Others Total

£8
BE
R

RBEERE EH
R
BE
R

RBETRE FE

BETT BEFTT BETT ZEFTT BETT
HKS000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000

Gross

Hong Kong 26,985 28,879 279 70 56,213
Macau 1,218 448 747 13,560 15,973
Total insurance liabilities, gross 28,203 29,327 1,026 13,630 72,186
Net

Hong Kong 24,098 26,933 279 47 51,357
Macau 1,092 440 703 12,927 15,162
Total insurance liabilities, net 25,190 27,373 982 12,974 66,519
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(ii) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over
a long period of time and a larger element of claims
provision relates to incurred but not reported claims.
There are several variables that affect the amounts and
timing of cash flows from these contracts. These mainly
relate to the inherent risks by individual contract holders
and the risk management procedures adopted. The
compensation paid on these contracts is the monetary
awards granted for bodily injury suffered. Such awards
are lump-sum payments that are calculated as the
present value of the lost of earnings and rehabilitation
expenses that the injured party will incur as a result of
the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes
all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However,
given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it
is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different
from the original liabilities established. The liabilities for
these contracts comprise provisions for IBNR, provisions
for reported claims not yet paid and provisions for
unexpired risks at the reporting date.

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported or not), the Group's estimation techniques are
a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the
loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate
cost of insurance claims and insurance premiums earned
in a particular financial year in relation to such claims)
and estimates based upon actual claims experience
using predetermined formulae where greater weight is
given to actual claims experience as time passes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(ii) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the costs
of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim event is available. In
estimating the amounts of IBNR which make reasonable
provisions for the claims and the unexpired risks, it is
necessary to project future claims costs and associated
claims expenses and simulate the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models. These models are simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic
forces and may not be entirely appropriate for the
types of insurance business being analysed. It is certain
that actual future claims and claims expenses will not
develop exactly as projected and may vary significantly
from the projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of reported
claims not yet paid the Group considers any information
available from loss adjusters and information on the
costs of settling claims with similar characteristics in
previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-
case basis or projected separately in order to allow for
the possible distortive effect of their development and
incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the
experience being projected. The projections given by
the various methodologies also assist in estimating
the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate
estimation technique is selected taking into account the
characteristics of the business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iii) Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in order
to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The choice of
selected results for each accident year of each class of
business depends on an assessment of the technique
that has been most appropriate to observed historical
developments. In certain instances, different techniques
or combination of techniques have been selected for
individual accident year or group of accident years
within the same class of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group's
motor and employees’ compensation insurance
portfolio, the paid and incurred loss development
methods supplemented by BF method are applied.
For other classes of insurance portfolio, the incurred
loss development method is used to project the claim
liabilities.

The paid and incurred loss development methods
are used to project the ultimate costs of the claims,
and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested
by an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios.
The change in the monetary awards granted for bodily
injury suffered and also the employers’ liability claims is
the most critical to the assumptions used to estimate the
liabilities for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However,
an increase of 10% in the costs of these claims would
require the recognition of an additional loss of
approximately HK$4.6 million (2014: approximately
HK$3.5 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material. Such
an assessment and the relative materiality of individual
variables may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The
table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate of net
claims outstanding of the Group’s motor and employees’
compensation insurance portfolio for each accident year
has changed at successive reporting dates.
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MANAGEMENT (Continued)
1 R B S 5 e B R 25 (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PR B El B (48) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iv) BURE 50T — (R B2 5 18 5 7 7Y Bk (iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
E#HEX (&) development tables (Continued)
ERE Motor insurance
ENEE Accident year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 % Total

BETL BEFL EETT RETT EETT |BETR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 | HKS$'000

fEF ZRBERA Estimate of ultimate claims costs

RENEE atend of accident year 8,832 8,199 7,427 7,359 7,549
—Fi4 one year later 8,395 7,892 6,642 6,324

“Fik two years later 7,287 8,089 6,074

=Fi#% three years later 8,029 8,238

Mk four years later 7,684

EHhE 2 BETEEE Current estimate of cumulative claims 7,684 8,238 6,074 6,324 7,549 | 35,869
SRR Cumulative payment to date (6451)  (6,088)  (3358)  (3533)  (2264)| (21,694)

1,233 2,150 2,716 2,791 5,285 14,175

MEERZER Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2011 1,212

15,387
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4 R B R AR R B (4 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

‘:l

4.1 P B B B B IR 2% (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) AP )R By (78) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iv) BRRE 50T — (R B A5 18 3 & 1 0 R (iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
E#H#E (&) development tables (Continued)
ETRE Employees’ compensation insurance
EHEE Accident year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 @& Total
BETT E¥Fr FEFr EEFT EETT | BEFR
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 | HKS$'000
R ERA Estimate of ultimate claims costs
RENFE atend of accident year 801 567 6,577 9,294 11,965
—Fik one year later 856 2,066 5972 10,214
“Fik two years later 1,505 2,405 4,948
5% three years later 1325 3,942
MR four years later 1,254
B 2 BEERE Current estimate of cumulative claims 1,254 3,942 4948 10214 11965 | 32,323
2LEFNR Cumulative payment to date (1,245)  (1,202) (482) (320) (150) | (3,399)
9 2,740 4,466 9,894 11,815 28,924
WHEFEAZER Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2011 284
29,208
AEBAETREHRREME] L — R The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
BERHNDRER BEEEFE—ERET covers on a number of short-term insurance products
o that have remained unchanged in recent years.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The Group is
exposed to market risk because of its investments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The risk
includes potential losses arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

The Group's risk management objective is to enhance
shareholder’s value by maintaining risk exposures within
acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market risk
is based on restricting individual operations to invest
within a list of permissible instruments authorised by the
Board to ensure all risks arising are thoroughly identified,
properly measured and adequately controlled.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations measured in Renminbi
(“RMB").

In respect of receivables, payables and cash balances
held in currencies other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group's borrowings are in the functional currency of
the entity taking out the loans. Given this, management
does not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with the Group’s borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities measured in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate at
the reporting date:

2015 2014

AR¥ T AREF T

RMB'000 RMB'000

At ESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 609,980 616,276
H b fE U BR 3R Other debtors 1,725 3,104
e MIRITES Cash and bank balances 248,108 693,831
H RS &F’gﬂr%ﬁﬁﬁ Other creditors and accruals (6,548) (6,544)
JE < AN BE R 18 Current income tax payable (20,929) (20,929)
832,336 1,285,738
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) and other components of equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the
reporting date:

2014

HERBE HRHAENR i 3.4 HNEH kK Wﬁ%;ﬁﬂ& HERER
R/ (TH) RERNNEE ERBINYE LA/ (TH) REEIGNZE AREH E’J%;
Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) profit after other (decrease) profit after other

in foreign taxation and components in foreign taxation and components
exchange rate retained profits of equity  exchangerate  retained profits of equity
I=F:1 BEFT BEFT BAH BT BEFT

% HK$'000 HKS$'000 % HKS'000 HKS 000

ARE Renminbi 5 13,267 36,396 5 41,830 38,506
(5) (13,267) (36,396) (3) (41,830) (38,500)

EREEE AN HERERRHEAL
BEBERCASREDENHEAEE
BEOSMIAZ)ERR WA AR
o 2B (5 RIR IR ) AU 5 R B

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The stated change represents management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rate
over the period until the next reporting date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong Dollars and the United States Dollars would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States Dollars against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
profit after taxation and equity of each of the Group's
entities measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the reporting date for presentation purposes.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

The Group is also exposed to foreign exchange rate risk
from its investments in investees which are in Renminbi.

(ii)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on investments
held by the Group classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position as available-for-sale
financial assets or as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group’s equity investments held for trading are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the index and
the Group's liquidity needs. Investments held in the
available-for-sale portfolio comprise equity investments
listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The listed equity investments have been
chosen based on their long term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.
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Ok B e o 5 Jal B 8 B (76 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
1A% B M A R B TR & (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) T35 E By (48) (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) EEERE (&) (i) Price risk (Continued)
TRINSAEENRZHAAEBBERE The following table indicates the approximate change
MZEHLRNEEAE @%Ejﬂﬁ%xﬁ in the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
RE AR EE R BRI &R (RIRE profits) and other components of equity in response to
wmA) REREMAK B EEHKRLD reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market
A index for listed investments to which the Group has
significant exposure at the reporting date:
2015 2014
HEERZY BRHEZRNR HEREM HEEREH ”TWR&/M‘J& Higa o
R/ (TH) RERANYE ARSI0EE L#/(TH) RERAMYE iﬁﬁ%*ﬁ’\ﬁ’]mﬁ“
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
in the relevant taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
Aokt BEFT BETT ARt BETT BETT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS000 HK$'000
EH%E 2  Stock marketindex
HBRT  inrespect of listed
B investments
B4 Hang Seng Index 5 410 40 5 363 -
(5) (410) (40) (5) (363) =
FB%4A  Shanghai Composite
RE Index 5 - 36,730 5 - 38,463
(5) - (36,730) (5) - (38,463)
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(ii)  Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock
market index had occurred and had been applied to the
exposure to equity price risk in existence at the reporting
date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index, that none of the Group's available-for-
sale investments would be considered impaired as a
result of a reasonably possible decrease in the relevant
stock market index, and that all other variables remained
constant. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the
relevant stock market index over the period until the
next reporting date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2014.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the
risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits and bank borrowings
bore in floating rates which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group manages these risks
primarily through maintaining the maturity profile of
these assets and liabilities within a short to medium
period and monitoring the market interest rate
movements so that the Group can react accordingly
when there are adverse interest rate movements.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net borrowings at the reporting date. For this
purpose the Group defines “net borrowings” as being
interest-bearing financial liabilities less interest-bearing
investments (excluding cash held for short-term working
capital purposes):

2015 2014
BRA= BREE BRM REE
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate amount interest rate amount
E BEFT /3 EBEFT
% HK$'000 % HKS'000
FEN I Variable rate
BILRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 3.1-34 615,850 20-31 579,097
B EERARE Less: Renminbi bank
F#R deposits pledged 3.2-33 (48,927) 31-36 (404,887)
566,923 174,210

20155128318 ZFHFRETE
R F R AL F I T 81001 E 2
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘ﬁmm%{ HRHTE B AERE
2B R A MR R A g R g
D0 #078 # 4958 7T (20144F : 478 300
&) °

LA FRESITEREMNEEFHENRE
WMABEREREREFEANERIFE
REEBMESRMT A ZFE@E - -5
S THI0EES AEREEHEE T —
FAFESRBILHBAERLIBHEIER
BER B ART(E © 2014F M D TIZHR
—'—ETTO

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates of variable rate bank borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease or increase
the Group's profit after taxation and retained profits by
approximately HK$4.95 million (2014: approximately
HK$3 million).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had occurred
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments with variable interest rate
held by the Group at the reporting date. The 100 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

1
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(¢) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a customer or counterparty will be unable to or
unwilling to fulfill its repayment obligations for amounts
due to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to loans to customers, insurance related
receivables and other receivables.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.

In respect of the insurance related receivables and other
receivables, the Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
screening the counterparties, on-going monitoring and
acquiring collateral from counterparties.

Those receivables are required to meet the Group's
established financial requirements and the Group
will obtain third party guarantees when it considered
necessary.

In order to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit
risks and counterparty risks from loans to customers,
the Group has set out its objectives, credit policies,
processes for monitoring and managing those risks as
well as the detailed policies and procedures for credit
approval process related to the micro credit business.

By the nature of the micro credit business, the Group has
set up three layers of Credit Committees for the approval
of loans with different authorisation limits. Business
Department is responsible for the daily monitor and
management of loans portfolio with reference to the
various criteria such as the operating results, financial
condition and creditworthiness of the clients, guarantee
provided, type and amount of collateral pledged, and
risk concentration of the clients as well as the regular
site visit according to the credit policies. The Risk
Control Department is responsible for monitoring and
evaluating the credit risks of clients, the registration of
the guarantee and collaterals provided by clients as well
as the irregular site visit and debts collection for the
disputed loans. The Internal Audit Department of the
Group is responsible for the internal review of the loans
approval process and the efficiency of the credit control
policies and procedures.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(¢) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measured and managed the quality of its loan
portfolios based on the guideline for Loan Credit Risk
Classification issued by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (the "CBRC"), which requires to classify
loans into the following five categories: pass, special
mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, among which
loans classified as substandard, doubtful and loss are
recognised as non-performing loans. In order to enhance
the accuracy level of its credit risk management, the
Group used a 8-tier risk classification criterion for
loans to customers. The Group carried out regular
investigations and one-by-one monitoring, reported
overdue loans and adjusted risk classification results in
a timely manner, so as to reflect asset quality objectively
and set aside provisions accurately.

The definitions of the five categories are set out below:

Pass: Borrowers can honour the terms of their loans.
There is no reason to doubt their ability to repay
principal and interest in full on a timely basis.

Special mention: Borrowers are currently able to service
their loans and interest, although repayment may be
adversely affected by specific factors.

Substandard: Borrowers’ ability to service their loans is
apparently in question and they cannot rely entirely on
normal business revenues to repay principal and interest.
Certain losses might be incurred even when collaterals
or guarantees are executed.

Doubtful: Borrowers cannot repay principal and interest
in full and significant losses will be incurred even when
collaterals or guarantees are executed.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot be recovered
or only a small portion can be recovered after taking
all possible measures or resorting to necessary legal
procedures.

1
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Loans to customers and interest receivable are
considered impaired and allowances are made if there
is objective evidence of impairment resulting in a
measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows from
loans to customers and interest receivable. The Group
makes adequate and timely allowances for impairment
losses in accordance with prudent and authentic
principles. Allowances for impairment losses on loans to
customers and interest receivable consist of individually
assessed and collectively assessed allowance. At 31
December 2015, the Group’s impairment allowances
on loans to customers and interest receivable were
HKS$162.13 million (2014: HK$38.68 million) and
impairment allowances to total loans (included interest
receivable) ratio was 45.76% (2014: 12.31%).

At 31 December 2015, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of
the financial year without taking into account of
any collateral held or other credit enhancement is
represented by the carrying amount of the financial
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance. A summary
of the maximum exposure is as follows:

2015 2014

BT T BT T

HKS'000 HKS'000

IR FE UL FR Insurance receivable 15,591 10,644
BRBEE Reinsurance assets 4,855 5,667
EEPERNEWFIE  Loans to customers and interest receivable 192,178 275,487
H b 8 U BR 5K Other debtors 4,268 5,185
B RIBTHEF Cash and bank balances 1,432,106 1,353,943
1,648,998 1,650,926
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(¢) Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from insurance receivable
are set out in Note 20 and that arising from loans to
customers and interest receivable are set out in Note 22.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet its cash flow needs
or commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either
inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair value,
a counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual
obligation or an insurance liability falling due for
payment earlier than expected.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash, readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s
reinsurance assets and financial liabilities which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
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4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2015 2014
EFZFZ FoEZ
BHANE ELER RUKTTR ERER
BonEE F-%A (8 HeigE  E-%A (8f
Total HEEX BEWME) Total  HEEX  BEWE)
SREE contractual  Within one In the second SHE  contractual  Withinone In the second
Carrying undiscounted yearor to fifth year Carrying undiscounted yearor  tofifth year
amount  cashflow ondemand inclusive amount cashflow  on demand inclusive
A¥Frn  AETT  AMFn  BEFL| AF¥FT BT BETT BB
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
EE Assets

BRBEE Reinsurance assets 4,855 4,855 2,376 2,479 5,667 5667 2265 3402

8 Liabilities
Rigdth Insurance contracts 87,650 87,650 53,806 33,844 72,186 72,186 44479 27,707
R Insurance payable 8,818 8,818 8818 = 6,059 6,059 6,059 -
EfERETRENER Other creditors and accruals 25,021 25,021 25,021 = 29411 29411 29411 -
RAER Bank borrowings 615,850 664,062 133,875 530,187 579,097 580,881 580,881 -
737,339 785,551 221,520 564,031 686,753 688537 660,830 27,707

RIFERBEMENTERERBH R
B B AL 12 2R R IR (R R
ERBBESMBMT &
HABRERTUY B KR BRESR

£¥|§E| RISRTT

fE\ BIEFR

=
T e

) R

The maturity analysis of bank borrowings at the
reporting date based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan facilities before consideration of the
effect of any repayment on demand clause is detailed as

below. The lender cancelled the repayment on demand
clause contained in the loan facility during the year.

2015 2014
gt 3} -t 23
BHANE ZLER BHATE ERER
BEnsE F-%A (8 Ro g  E-EW (87
Total HEZX EEME) Total  HEEX EEME)
BREE  contractual  Within one In the second SHE  contractual  Withinone In the second
Carrying undiscounted yearor to fifth year Carrying undiscounted yearor  tofifth year
amount  cashflow ondemand inclusive amount cash flow  on demand inclusive
A¥Fn  BETn  EEFn  BETL| EE¥Fr BT ERFTr BETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
RITER Bank borrowings 615,850 664,062 133,875 530,187 579,097 592135 436351 155,784




—E—HRFEFIR Annual Report 2015

NN R i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR B S S 755 Jal g B ()

1P B B BA 85 Ja e IR 3R ()

(e) Whe 4 AR RS 1Y) B 15 J\ i 4 PR

AEENBESRER EREENY

Rk R EE B FRMBRBEALLT
(i) #a
EREENKEEDEELAESBER
M BREE T2 HERER- REE
ﬂ 2 AT 5 R (B R SME R - B
B K F & 2 )Vﬁﬁlﬁ\m%
J?%WWT%ﬁH cEREEMN

AR ED R b e 2 @ E /Y F
@'Hkﬁiﬂ“ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmTﬂ

By 488
A

EREENEES ([EREZS])H
TRBRERHRK HSREBEREERE
REFEREMNRREIEER  H T8
%mnAﬁﬁﬁ REEF BIRIMNER,
HMERRER-ERER ERATES
@Iﬂ&#ﬁii@lﬂﬁiﬁ@@%
ERR ELAREEBRREEFLRE
REZSHERAZHPIAERT UL
S A ERE AT RRFI B B B R B B IR
MEFIRBETELNESE -

(i) 15/ E Bz

ERRAREEREBEELZELERBT AR
HRNFEZNEAR 2 — ERERE
2REERLBR REEHSG BEHR
B EREEMS AT

EREERAFRECHREBRNR
e EREEEBERTR BRER
B REALR ZRLERER BRI
HASER RREE AREREETF
BN EERERRR-

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management objectives
and policies of the Group’s associated financial
institutions, XIB Group, are summarised as below:

(i) Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk
and interest rate risk). XIB Group continuously identifies,
evaluates and monitors these risks. XIB Group’s aim is to
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on its financial
performance.

The board of directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management. Its senior
management establishes related risk management
policies and procedures under the strategy approved
by the XIB Board, including written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments. Those risk
management policies and procedures are implemented
by various departments after XIB Board’s approval. In
addition, its internal audit department is responsible for
the independent review of risk management and control
environment.

(i)  Credit risk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans
and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of XIB Group
are standardised. Credit rating, credit measurement,
economic capital, various post-lending management,
indicator control, collective assessment, risk warning and
risk reporting are measures for managing credit risks.

1
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group has to ensure
the availability of adequate funding to meet its needs
to fund deposit withdrawals and other liabilities as they
fall due, as well as being able to meet its obligations to
fund loan originations and commitments and to take
advantage of new investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to assess
and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such indices
on a timely basis.

(iv) Market risk

XIB Group’s market risk arises from open positions in the
trading book and banking book in interest rate, foreign
exchange rate, equities and commodities. The trading
book consists of financial instruments and commodities
that are free of any restrictive covenants on their
tradability and held with trading intent, and in order to
or for the purpose of hedging market risk of the trading
book. The banking book consists of financial instruments
not included in the trading book (including those
financial instruments purchased with surplus funds and
managed in the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits and
risk limits to identify, monitor and control market risk.
XIB Group performs sensitivity analysis on a regular basis
to assess the interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk
of its trading book and banking book.

— Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business
in Renminbi, with other transactions in foreign
currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. XIB Group
manages its exposures to foreign exchange risk through
management of its net foreign currency position.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv) Market risk (Continued)
— Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group’s assets,
revenue and economic value would suffer losses or
have the risk of contingent losses due to fluctuations of
interest rates and changes of interest rates structure. The
re-pricing risk, the primary and most common interest
rate risk, arises from the difference between maturity
terms (for fixed interest rates) or between the re-pricing
terms (for floating interest rates) of XIB Group’s assets,
liabilities and off balance sheet commitments. Cash flow
interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposures to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash
flows. XIB Group’s business in Mainland China operates
under the interest rate scheme regulated by the People’s
Bank of China. XIB Group controls its interest rate risk
primarily through controlling the distribution of the
maturity date or re-pricing date of loans and deposits
and the asset-liability re-pricing gap.

(v) Capital management

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
(i) to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within XIB
Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity holders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored
by XIB Group’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by the CBRC, for
supervisory purposes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings and advances
divided by total net assets. For this purpose the Group
defines total borrowings and advances as total bank
borrowings and short-term advances (if any) as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Total net assets comprise all components of equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2014, was to maintain the gearing ratio within
25%. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
equity holders of the Company, issue new shares, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2015 and
2014 were as follows:

2015 2014

BYT T B F T

HKS$'000 HKS'000

wEs Total borrowings and advances 615,850 579,097
HEERE Total net assets 5,083,229 4,816,009
EXREELR Gearing ratio 12.1% 12.0%
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
HKOCI, a subsidiary of the Company, Min Xin Insurance,
should maintain at least HK$20 million in its adjusted
net assets calculated according to the requirements set
out in the Insurance Companies Ordinance. In order to
fulfill these requirements, Min Xin Insurance may adjust
the dividend paid to the Company or issue new shares
to the Company. If Min Xin Insurance cannot maintain
the capital requirements imposed, the HKOCI may place
restrictions on the operations of Min Xin Insurance.

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant
market information. The Group measures fair values
using the following hierarchy of methods:

— Level 1: fair value measured using only unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
instruments at the measurement date.

— Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments,
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.
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B EFREFLTAEENRE
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RERAZSFESNAKRAEEEFE
AEEQTE BFERMTAFARF
ERBNE-FR-

FRERTAILRERAFERENE
—FEMFE_FHEER - AEEHN
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

— Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). This category includes all instruments
where the valuation technique includes inputs not
based on observable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments
that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as held for trading and available-for-sale
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These financial instruments are included in Level 1
of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of unlisted open-ended funds traded in
active markets is based on the net asset value of the
funds published by the fund management companies at
each trading date. The Group adopted the unadjusted
net asset value of the funds as their fair value at the
reporting date and these financial instruments are
included in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the year there was no transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments held by the Group at the reporting
date measured at fair value across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement:

E—ZEH
Level 1
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
BEMWDFEFE Recurring fair value measurement
BE | Assets
A ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 728,713 770,129
REEEM L™ Listed equity securities held for
IR trading 8,095 7,194
736,808 777,323
(b) FEUAAFESNBRA &R T HE A (b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at
e other than fair value

JEH&,TMDB%DZTEJEET%(ﬁu*ﬁ_)&ﬁ%‘ﬁ%\
MREEDREEELAFERE S/
eENATEEAERENERIAT
i%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁfﬁ*%é%@fﬁuin”i

b 5T AN HI & R BT WIRIBBE
REBNEMRZETHE SEEAH
%JiRTﬁ%?%éﬁE’ﬂ%ﬁ*%%ﬁEﬁE
Al e

H+

BreMmEENMTHE 151
Eg@ﬂ?@%’ﬂﬁ%% LR EHRBHER
’f o

The carrying value of trade receivables less impairment
losses (if any) and trade payables are assumed to
approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial
liabilities is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate
their carrying values at the reporting date.
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RN R E R 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION
RERNABRNEZHBIWALLT The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:
2015 2014
EBET T BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000
=2 Turnover
EREBEUWA Gross insurance premiums 61,916 52,741
HPEZFEUW A@) Interest income from loans to customers (a) 38,721 48,468
"EYMEHRSWA Rental income from investment properties 10,216 10,188
At EeRmEE Dividend income from available-for-sale
g B A financial assets 33,222 33,227
144,075 144,624
RRBRESS Movement in unearned insurance premiums (4,749) (2,969)
BRESHRBR Reinsurance premiums ceded and
PN R R reinsurers’ share of movement in
REZE unearned insurance premiums (5,602) (6,391)
Haw A Other revenues
BB Management fees 90 120
RITF KA BULA Interest income from bank deposits 33,868 24,005
FE U E XA B U A Interest income from loan receivable = 9,247
HIEEEW LM Dividend income from listed equity
B HF R B WA securities held for trading 336 214
HAb Others 556 352
34,850 33,938
ON L Total revenues 168,574 169,202
(@ RERN BFERFBEWA BT (@) The interest income from loans to customers for

EERMERZEFERF B WA S
6,825,0007T (20144 : &) o

Nil).

the year comprised an interest income accrued for
impaired loans to customers of HK$6,825,000 (2014:
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group identifies its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Executive Board
Committee and General Manager that are used to
make strategic decisions, allocate resources and assess
performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and
investments held, operating performance evaluation and
resources allocation are based on individual business
activities operated and investments held by the Group.
For investees, operating performance evaluation is based
on individual investee of the Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

— Financial services: this segment includes the
provision of micro credit business in Mainland China
and the engagement of banking business through
the Group’s major associates, XIB in Mainland China
and LIB in Macau.

— Insurance: this segment includes the Group's
general insurance business in Hong Kong and
Macau.

— Property development and investment: this
segment includes the real estate development
business and the leasing of high quality office space
in Mainland China.

— Strategic investment: this segment represents the
Group’s investment in A-Share of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”).

— Others: this segment includes results of operations
not directly identified under other reportable
segments and head office activities. Head office
is also considered to be a segment as discrete
financial information is available for the head office
activities.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
chief operating decision-makers monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments.
All direct costs incurred by different segments are
grouped under respective segments. Indirect costs
and support functions’ costs related to head office
activities that cannot be reasonably allocated to other
segments, products and services are grouped under
head office. Transactions between segments are priced
based on similar terms offered to or transacted with
external parties. Inter-segment income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation. The measure used
for reporting segment profit is “profit for the year”, i.e.
profit after taxation of the business entities, net income
generated from investments held and share of results of
investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and
current assets held by the business entities, net book
value of investments held and share of net assets of and
loans to investees. Segment liabilities include insurance
liabilities, creditors and accruals, income tax payable
and deferred tax liabilities attributable to individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by the
segments or directly related to those segments. An asset
and a liability are grouped under same segment if the
liability is collateralised by the asset. Dividend payable to
equity holders of the Company is treated as unallocated
liabilities in reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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KK, Y 2am YA A2 dN Vo)
SR N EE R (88) 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) ibEsE EE LA () (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
NERRRAE AHEH
SRER Ri Property development RERE £t Inter-segment &8
Financial services Insurance and investment Strategic investment Others elimination Consolidated
15 0014 2005 004 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 014 2015 004 2005 2014
BETT| SR | BEFR| BETL | BEFL | BEFT | ARTIL| BEFT| BRTR| SR | BETR| BHTr| BEFR| BETn
HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKSOOD | HKS'000| HKSOOO| HKS00 | HKS000| HKSO00 | HKSO00| HKS000| HKSOOD | HKS000| HKSOOO
BE12B31ALEE  Year ended 31 December
X8 Turnover
MREP External customers 38721| 48468| e5516| se2| ee16| 6657| 33222 3320 - = - - 14a075 | 14464
BAE Inter-segments - - - - - - - -l 3952 3933 (3952 (3933 - -
8721| 48468| e5516| se22| eer6| 6657|3322 3327 3952|3933 @esa| o3| 144075 144624
FRIREFE Movement in net unearned

2HRERE insurance premiums and

i reinsurance premiums ceded - -1 (10351 (9360) - - - - - - - -1 (10351 (9360)
EHBA Other revenues 7515 ode4| 1798|1745 45| 9475 - -2 134 - -| 3850 33938
BABE Total revenues 46236 | 579%2| se963| 4ases7|  7mo31| 16132| 33222| 3227|2074 1787|3952 (3933)| 168,574| 169,202
EfbliE/ (F8)  Other gains/(loss)

- 3§ -net 65940 | 6728| 10,663] 6029 (11,693 1952 - -l @] (2148 = -l owm@| o 256
EELON L Total operating income 12176 | e4660| e7,626| s4ese| (62| 18084 | 33222| 37| 7896|5039 (52| (3933)| 212306| 171763
REEHRELFE  Impaiment loss on loans to

REEE customers and interest

receivable (136,785)|  (38,055) = e - 5 - = - L = -] (136,785)]  (38,055)
A Operating expenses mo3m| @722 ©en| o9 @I (5514) - -l oes3n| @)l 3es2| 3933 (97443) (87,710)
S%(F8) /87 Operating (loss)/profit (32583)| 17883  6459| ager| (rar9)| 12570 33222| 3327| (1,681)] (22349 = - 1922 459%
BERA Finance costs (3475) (424 (89) = - = - -l o3 792 - -] (2958 (7016)
EEHEAAEE Share of results of associates 517,973 | 446,801 - - - - - -o201| 5419 = -] 520900| 452220
BHAEA/ (BB)  Profit/loss) before taxation | 481,955 | 460460 6370 4667 (7419) 12570| 33222 27| (8108)| (19722) - -] 486020 | 491,202
st Income tax expense o461 0755 a0 59| 7ea| eog| @322 (3323 (592 (1574) = - e8| (18515
REEER/ (FB)  Profit/(loss) for the year 472,494 | 449705 | 5430 4408 25| 9966 29,900 29904 | (30,700  (21,29) - | 411,339| 4687
HEMA Interest income 46,195| 57932 1286|1326 B Y - -| 2s08] 13215 = -l 71589 81,720
TEEHE Depreciation for the year 474 465 172 130 - 5 - = il 748 - -l 47 1343
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5 EEFERIER () 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) b A EE KA (8 (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
NEZRRRE
SRERE RE Property development KBRE £ &a
Financial services Insurance and investment Strategic investment Others Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

BETR| BETT| BETR| ERTT| BETx| BETT| BETL| ENTT| BRTR| BXTEL| BEFi| BETT
HKS000 | HKS000|  HKSOOO|  HKSO0O| HKSG00 |  HKSUOO| HKSo0|  HKSODO| HKSO00|  HKSOOD)|  HKS000|  HKSOOD

M2A318 At 31 December

KRERMERE  The Company and subsidiaries | 263,051 597268 215,626 171,375 95,694 | 104021 727,920 770,129 | 1,321,704|  989264| 2,623,995| 2,632,057

RERELR Investments in associates 3,224,389 | 2,865,697 - - - - -| 39588|  80193| 3,263,977 2945890
hgE Total assets 3,487,440 | 3460965 _ 215,626 _171375| 95,694 104021 _ 727920 _ 770129 | 1,361,292 | _1,069457 | 5:887,972| _5577.947
ARERMBEAT  The Company and subsidiaries 2328 207179 102594|  836%0| 41,874 49465 - - estoar| 4ugo4| sos73| 761938
BeE Total liabilities 2328 207179] 102504  83690|  41,874| 49465 s | estoar|  4ig04| 80a743| 761938

REEEARY  Capital expenditure incurred
during the year 20 598 259 27 - - - - 784 487 1,063 1112
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BT E R (4]) 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) i[5 &} (b) Geographical information
TEREINEAONEEEREINAT,H The following table sets out the information about the
WARAEENYE s RRE- geographical location of (i) the Group's revenues from
KEMERKEBERT ([BEIERD external customers and (ii) the Group's property, plant
BE|)MTHEMNER -EFATHE and equipment, investment properties and investments
RIRERESEREMEE| D 15 in associates (“specified non-current assets”). The
EERBEEFMTHENE D W geographical location of customers is based on the
28 MR 1%&&§%%&§?EEF%§FF{E location at which the services were provided or the
MBS WEHE QB AL B goods delivered. The geographical location of the
Elba) specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties and the location
of operations, in the case of investments in associates.
Bk hERE AP 54
Hong Kong Mainland China Macau Consolidated
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BETL| AEFr| BETn| AEFr| EETr| EETr| BEFR| EETr
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BZ12A31ALFE  Yearended 31 December
MREPRA Revenues from external customers 32,241 29923 78,585 88,363 33,249 26338 144,075| 144624
#12A318 At 31 December
ARTRMEBAT  The Company and subsidiaries 99,592 77487 98,586 108329 9 68| 198.276| 185884
REBERF Investments in associates - -| 3,263977| 2,9458% - - 3263,977| 2,945,890
REERBEE Specified non-current assets 99,592 77487 3,362,563| 3,054,219 98 68| 3,462,253| 3131774
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6  H Atk f — 3 FH 6 OTHER GAINS — NET
2015 2014
BT JEBTF T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
BAFEBIBEEZYEE  Fair value losses on listed equity securities
W EmREESF AT measured at fair value through
EEE profit or loss (1,451) (419)
PEZAFEEBIEZR  (Losses)/gains on disposal of listed equity
PIBRE) E TR EE 5 securities measured at fair value
(F518) Uz through profit or loss (8,819) 26
RHEEHZEATE Fair value losses on forward foreign
&5 18 exchange contracts - (603)
WEMEEHAFE Fair value gains on revaluation of
I &= investment properties 10,178 10,937
B N BN ESER  Gains on dilution of interest in associates
Wz (sFE17(0), (Notes 17(c), 17(d) and 17(g))
17(d)&17(g) ) 73,333 11,737
HEMMEHESBMEE  Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Wz (55 E18(b)) financial assets (Note 18(b)) = 1,313
HEWE B NEME  Gain on disposal of property, plant and
Iz equipment - 91
i X BB R Net exchange losses (29,509) (20,521)
43,732 2,561
7 IRBEEBEAREEFE M 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED
%% AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
R EFEENEE Net insurance claims incurred on
¥ 3 (a) insurance business (a) 21,045 16,863
REEBEENHE Commission expenses incurred on
2 F (b) insurance business (b) 24,119 18,969
45,164 35,832
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7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) Net insurance claims incurred on insurance

business
2015
e ] BRE RE
Gross  Reinsurance Net
BEFT BETFT BYEF T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
REERERBAAR Current year claims and loss
£H adjustment expenses 11,033 (393) 10,640
TFEEEERIBLAR Additional cost/(run-off savings)
BERMEIIA for prior years’ claims and
(BEETHR) loss adjustment expenses 7,787 (179) 7,608
BELAERERNRE Increase in claims incurred
12 fn but not reported 1,357 1,030 2,387
RmHI R b 2 TR B (E Increase in the expected cost of
X A 35 A claims for unexpired risks 410 - 410
20,587 458 21,045
2014
£ BiRk R
Gross Reinsurance Net
BETFT BT BT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
REERERBLAR Current year claims and loss
ZH adjustment expenses 9,003 (27) 8,976
TEERERBAAR Additional cost for prior years' claims
ERMBINKA and loss adjustment expenses 3,476 796 4,272
E%i@ﬂi%i&fi@%ﬂé Increase/(decrease) in claims
#m,/ Crd incurred but not reported 3,320 (697) 2,623
Am iRk T8 u-«— B8 Increase in the expected cost of
B 2538 4N claims for unexpired risks 992 - 992
16,791 72 16,863
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B{E5&@EAMR 2 8 Min Xin Holdings Limited

7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS

INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) Commission expenses incurred on insurance

business
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000
ENREMNBEER Gross commissions paid and payable 24,392 19,284
BB R EKE Less: Commissions received and receivable
R AMA< from reinsurers (273) (315)
HeBRFE Net commission expenses 24,119 18,969
I3 1 & F
wE (k) kA 8 OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000
BE (F1R), /BFBEST Operating (loss)/profit is stated after crediting
AN HIBR T 51 &8 and charging the following:
A Crediting
HEWE HEKRZXME  Gain on disposal of property, plant and
Wz equipment - 91
TEMHE D W R FEK Rentals received and receivable from
e HBREEER investment properties less direct outgoings 8,451 8,476
R Charging
Z AN BN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,923 2,783
— B FEE - provision for current year 2,523 2,423
—HHEBETIE - interim attestation work 400 360
e Depreciation 1,417 1,343
EEE (7FR10(a)(iii)))  Management fee (Note 10(a)(iii)) 1,880 1,880
HEWE HRNEME  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
BB equipment 174 -
(ER el =g Pyt Net exchange losses 29,509 20,521
FBibE 2 &% & Operating lease rentals in respect of land and
buildings 605 333
RIREFI A (a) Retirement benefit costs (a) 1,016 918
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8 EZE () Al ()

(a)

¥£20009F 11 A30H Bl » A & & [A)
—EARATH-KEE ([REH®-AKE
BRI FMERERZEERE
B2 meRIKFTEI 2 EEBEASE
BrEESHARE HBUEER
©RE - HE2000F11 H308 £ E
HFGTERRIBEE BRI AES
ETEMEBIA S MR B M A TE S FHE
([T 8 ) FTBRAREBRL &K
SEREBHATHNGTE 2 HK
HUARBEARF 2B ZTHET
& o

AEEFARBRES S 2 HKE
(RHRERZEEEXNAFA
2+ (200099 A30H & M A K&
BZHPRBEAAEEXRNAFES Z
MNKEEEABRKANBS 2R
UREEREFE (UEsHRE
#4,000L BR) - EEEINB 2
RN 25 BB F AR IR AT 81 AT R Uk
ZEREAARERS ANEERR
ERRETEIRBBESFTE 2 R
20154 K2014F12 831 H W EF
MIERXRE A 2 R WK -

RPEANMAEEMS  AEEIR
BREGEHEAMEELE XK
B2 E BT R 8 RIKE
g-AKEZEEF S 2ANLRA
WEFEERE AR ME BT
BT TMRERERNEEEREDN
BAREHEE-

8 OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT (Continued)

(a)

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme ("DC Scheme") which was available to
all eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30
November 2000. The assets of the scheme were
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions
to the scheme by the Group and employees were
calculated at 15% of the employees' basic salary
until 30 November 2000 when the DC Scheme was
replaced by a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme") set up under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Group's monthly contributions (mandatory and
voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each employee
are calculated at the higher of 10% (or 6% for
employees who joined after 30 September 2000)
of the monthly basic salary and 5% of the monthly
total income, subject to a maximum contributions
of HK$4,000. The Group's contributions to the DC
Scheme and MPF Scheme can be reduced by the
Group's voluntary contributions forfeited in relation
to those employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. At 31 December
2015 and 2014, there were no material unutilised
forfeited contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland China
where the Group operates. The Group makes
monthly contributions calculated at a percentage
of the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and
the respective municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of the
employees of the Group.
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il R A 9 FINANCE COSTS
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
SRITERA B H Interest on bank loans 12,869 7,016
REERN B H Interest on margin loans 89 -
12,958 7,016

= B AT BN

L EPAIPN

—

=

Ll
|

& N H 4 e

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) = FHM4% (a) Directors' emoluments
EBEE () EEERE (i)
As As
director (i)  management (ii)
%fr%\‘ EE
&Eiiﬂ)i,ﬁﬁ .
REWF &
Salaries,
EZ#E  housing, other 2015
Directors’ allowances and ok
fees  benefits in kind Total
BYETT BETT BEFTT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HE=E Executive Directors
SERLE (LFE) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 60 - 60
THELE (FLE) Mr Wang Fei (Vice Chairman) 60 = 60
BAEE Mr Liu Cheng 100 1,328 1,428
FREL L Mr Li Jin Hua' 58 - 58
O SR 1 5 42 Mr Zhang Rong Huf? 14 - 14
FUTESR Non-executive Director
B ks Mr Yang Fang? 46 = 46
B fm A Mr Liu Lun* 2 - 2
BUFNTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - 250
SEBAL Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 350 = 350
BEMEE Mr So Hop Shing 250 - 250
1,190 1,328 2,518

AWN =

R2015F12 18R BT HRITES
R2015F3H26H BT HITES
R2015F3 268 L X AR ITES
R2015F 128 18R L A EHNITES

A WN =

Resigned as Executive Director on 18 December 2015
Resigned as Executive Director on 26 March 2015
Appointed as Non-executive Director on 26 March 2015
Appointed as Non-executive Director on 18 December 2015
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10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

EREZ(H)  ERERE ()
A As
director (i) management (ii)
HE-FE
REER -
REMH R
Salaries,
EE ik housing, other 2014
Directors’  allowances and k]
fees benefits in kind Total
BETTT BEFT BEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HITESR Executive Directors
SHRRLE (FE) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 60 - 60
ThEE(BEE) Mr Wang Fei (Vice Chairman)' 21 - 21
ERATE (FEE) Mr Peng Jin Guang (Vice Chairman)? 39 - 39
e Mr Liu Cheng? 71 388 459
FRERE Mr Li Jin Hua 89 934 1,023
REBEE Mr Zhang Rong Hui 60 - 60
BUFNITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - 250
PEMEE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 350 = 350
BAMKEE Mr So Hop Shing 250 = 250
1,190 1,322 2,512

1 R2014F8H26HEZTARITFER

Bx
5%

N201458H26 R BRI T

T
R#TT

3 201458 F26B A AMITES

1 Appointed as Vice Chairman and Executive Director on 26
August 2014

2 Resigned as Vice Chairman and Executive Director on 26
August 2014

3 Re-designated as Executive Director on 26 August 2014
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10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

HHME ()

HAEMLALTERA AR REMER
AIMESEMEHRMNRE X faE
FZ AT H B

HEEARRNBNEHEARBENER
THREMEMRS SN REMND
e

Z!S Alm— ?Hxﬂxiﬂ*siﬁ
B #1888 7T (20144 ) rH%Hss
é-%ﬁ) {’Ez%ﬁﬁ%}%*ﬁ%:ﬁﬁ;%
REH-LEERY BREREHRHES
FTARRAREEGZ2ER-

(Continued)

(a)

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The amounts represented emoluments paid
or payable for the services as a director of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

The amounts represented emoluments paid or
payable for other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company.

An amount of HKS$1.88 million (2014: HKS$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision of
certain management services which include the
provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company pursuant to a management

(b) 145 f = I <5 2 A Il L

EiiEE @2 AT AR ABZFAINME
MemAEBAAERSME 2 EHIA
TN TFHFALZMEFBOT:

agreement.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The analysis in note (a) above does not include those
individuals who are not directors but whose emoluments
are among the five highest in the Group. Details of the
emoluments paid to those individuals are as follows:

2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
& ERENMEMERL - Salaries, housing and other allowances,

KEYF R and benefits in kind 4,430 5,415
RIRFE I ET 8 R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 48 72
1EAT Bonus 5,950 5,840

10,428 11,327
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E AT BN 4 X 4 s 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
7 R [0 /NG el f‘ﬁ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)
(b) 1 4 & = B 4 2 M Al AN+ (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
(#5)
B £ &5 = Emoluments Band 2015 2014
AE A&
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
75 11,000,001 7T — & #51,500,0007C HK$1,000,001 —HK$ 1,500,000 = 2
75 151,500,001 7T — 74 % 2,000,0007C HK$1,500,001 —HK$2,000,000 1 -
75 152,000,001 7T — & % 2,500,0007C HK$2,000,001 —HK$2,500,000 = 1
75 12,500,001 7T — 74 %5 3,000,0007C HK$2,500,001 —HK$3,000,000 1 -
75 153,000,001 7T — 74 #£3,500,0007C HK$3,000,001 —HK$3,500,000 2

(c) mMEMANE

(c) Senior management

IS T AR MEBRABZEE (1% Details of the emoluments payable to senior
gE)FI1E ZZDT management of the Company by band are as follows:

B < &5 & Emoluments Band 2015 2014

AE AZ

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

¥ 17T — 7 %500,0007T HK$1—HK$500,000 1 -

##500,0017T — % #1,000,0007T HK$500,001 —HK$ 1,000,000 - 1

#%1,000,0017T — %5 #1,500,0007C HK$1,000,001 —HKS$ 1,500,000 - 2

##1,500,0017T — 5 2,000,000 HK$ 1,500,001 —HK$2,000,000 1 -

#%3,000,0017T — %5 3,500,000 HK$3,000,001 —HK$3,500,000 2 2
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11

BT 75 B 52

EHEAEERHEIRBENT:

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the

income statement represents:

consolidated

2015 2014
BT T B M F T
HK$'000 HKS'000
EHE Current tax
BEBMEH Hong Kong profits tax 464 441
AR A ZERTER Mainland China corporate income tax 2,085 5,327
BRI TR Mainland China withholding tax 15,344 13,809
B IE Macau taxation 138 210
18,031 19,787
AEEEHEBL  (B%) Under/(over) provision in prior years
A B A3 1 ZE RIS B Mainland China corporate income tax 227 -
SBPIRE IR Macau taxation (53) -
174 -
EER I Deferred tax
EREZEENEER Relating to the origination and reversal
i o) of temporary differences (95249 | (1,272
FrEHH Income tax expense 8,681 18,515

EBNEHIRBFERNMGERTER
B E16.5% (20144 : 16.5% ) 12 #E &
1o

o B 3t 1h 3R PR B T 4R R R O ot R
AR T 4K B R 25% (2014%F : 25% ) 7t

= o
A

AR B 3 RS2 B0 4% 8 B R BE20084F 1
ATBRBRRFN BT R EE - ANEE
TR RLAR B UL A B9 10%%4 4% B I 3 TR 4R
PSR -

P B 2 Bk BIR AR A R E AR
AR 2 IRITH KRG H -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year.

Mainland China corporate income tax has been
calculated at the rate of 25% (2014: 25%) on the
estimated taxable profits for the year.

Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 10% on
dividend income received from investees incorporated in
Mainland China when these investees declared dividend
out of profits earned after 1 January 2008.

Taxation on Macau profits has been calculated on the
estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in Macau.
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

wmh taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS'000 HKS$'000
B A% A gt A Profit before taxation 486,020 491,202
R E16.5% 5T H 2 F1E Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 80,193 81,048
EL A 085 3 &= S [R) A = Effect of different taxation rates in
B other tax jurisdictions (4,159) 580
HIE R 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (103,437) (72,606)
AR 2 S H Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 9,560 6,731
ANHE R K& AT HUOR Increase in unrecognised tax losses and
ERrEEEM deductible temporary differences 26,388 4,046
HRARFERER Recognition of prior year's unrecognised
2 A HUR Ko & AR A5 deductible and taxable temporary
FrER difference 5,178 -
EHRTEARBER 2 B I8 Utilisation of tax losses previously not
518 recognised (5,196) (1,274)
TFEEERBRD Under provision in prior years 174 -
H At Others (20) (10)
A< Income tax expense 8,681 18,515

AN T ME 28 FF X—T]\mf

fi i ]

12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

ARABESEFEABRGSESRFBED
SFAKRR BB RE AN E BB 183
BT (2014F  F FEB11,155870) »

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company includes a loss of HK$1.83 million (2014:
profit of HK$111.55 million) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.
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14

i 5 13 DIVIDEND
2015 2014
BT B FT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
258 A & H KRB E Final dividend proposed after the
BB reporting date of 5 HK cents
(201445 ¥ 5L) (2014: 5 HK cents) per share 22,971 22,971

R 2 H &R S ERARERE B
FHRERAFIERE HEENE E20165F
12A3M B IEFEIERBGEF DA -

e A

BRERZNEREHZE2015F12H31
AIEFERRAREERE ARG ENE
#47,733.98 7T (20144 : /5 1647,268.7
Bn) RFREEITRG 2 MEFITE
459,428,656 (20144F : 459,428,656 ) I% &

= o
>t

AEEAFEERBEFROEDEITA
BEBN 2RO AURBEEFENS
B ERN R REARRNAR -

14

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31
December 2016.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015 of HK$477,339,000
(2014: HK$472,687,000) and the weighted average of
459,428,656 (2014: 459,428,656) shares in issue during
the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore diluted
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share for the years presented.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B £E
HETHE WEER
TiERE B ENRB
Leasehold BREF Furniture,
land and Buildings fixtures, office RE
land use held for and computer Motor BE
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BYFT BT BEFT BT BT
HKS$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000
7201451718 At 1 January 2014
%S Cost 29,313 8,727 9,273 2914 50,227
ZHAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
B and impairment losses (13,406) (7,489) (7,139) (1,789) (29,823)
EEFE Net book value 15,907 1,238 2,134 1,125 20,404
HZE20145 Year ended
12A31BIEFE 31 December 2014
HREFE Opening net book value 15,907 1,238 2,134 1,125 20,404
BN =% Translation differences S = (24) (19) @3)
BR Additions - = 652 460 1,112
KEEHE Charge for the year (321) (81) (568) (373) (1,343)
HE Disposals - - (8) - (8)
BREMFE Closing net book value 15,586 1,157 2,186 1,193 20,122
720145128318 % At 31 December 2014 and
201561 41H 1 January 2015
%S Cost 29,313 8,727 9,436 3,352 50,828
ZHAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
EB#E and impairment losses (13,727) (7,570) (7,250) (2,159) (30,706)
EEFE Net book value 15,586 1,157 2,186 1,193 20,122
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15 W2~ dds bl (48)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
B #68
HETHE WEER
T fE R B SHRE
Leasehold BRETF Furniture,
land and Buildings fixtures, office AE
land use held for and computer Motor @y
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BEFT BEFT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
HZ20155 Year ended
12A31HLLEE 31 December 2015
HREEFE Opening net book value 15,586 1,157 2,186 1,193 20,122
] Translation differences - - (31) (32) (63)
B Additions - - 310 753 1,063
KEEHE Charge for the year (314) (79) (626) (398) (1,417)
HE Disposals = = (118) (103) (221)
TAHEBREER  Fairvalue gains credited to
EEez A TE leasehold buildings
Wz (@) revaluation reserve (a) 1,688 1,164 - - 2,852
ENNERRE Reclassified to investment
M (a) properties (a) (2,111) (1,164) = = (3,275)
BREERE Closing net book value 14,849 1,078 1,721 1,413 19,061
R2015%12A318 At 31 December 2015
KA Cost 28,621 8,511 8,915 3,044 49,091
ZHTERRE Accumulated depreciation
BB and impairment losses (13,772) (7,433) (7,194) (1,631) (30,030)
REFE Net book value 14,849 1,078 1,721 1,413 19,061
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

() EHE2EARFANMKFARAMY— (@) The amount represents the fair value gain on

HETERANEEFDBRERED
EAH A FEEGRKE - Z R FE
WHE R HEEREEEMFER N

revaluation of an owner-occupied property
located in Mainland China immediately before the
reclassification from owner-occupied property to

o investment properties during the year. The fair
value gain was recognised in leasehold buildings
revaluation reserve.

(b) BELH R LHFERENERERFE (b) The net book value of leasehold land and land use

DT rights is analysed as follows:

2015 2014
BT T B FoT
HKS$'000 HKS'000
EEBFBHELY Leases held in Hong Kong

50F A+ Over 50 years 4,382 4,404
105 £504F Between 10 and 50 years 10,441 10,699

EEFBAIIFRELY Leases held outside Hong Kong
105 £504F Between 10 and 50 years 26 483
14,849 15,586

NEBNHEE L 3 N+ i F BREANRK
KN E7A%2,8628 7T (2014 F : 5¥2,931

&) -

The cost of the leasehold land and land use rights of the
Group was HK$28.62 million (2014: HK$29.31 million).
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16 &Y E 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2015 2014
BT B FT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
~NE At fair value

M1A1H At 1 January 165,762 154,825

B HEREE Reclassified from property, plant and
E¥FoE (FF8150) equipment (Note 15(a)) 3,275 -
NFEEW = Fair value gains 10,178 10,937
12A31H At 31 December 179,215 165,762

AEBAREY F R REED T

The analysis of the Group’s interests in investment

™ properties at their carrying amount is as follows:
2015 2014
BETFT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
EEBFBHELY Leases held in Hong Kong
105 £504F Between 10 and 50 years 82,000 60,000
EBBUAIINFREELD Leases held outside Hong Kong
105 2504 Between 10 and 50 years 97,215 105,762
179,215 165,762

R B R RFE QT EBES200
7T (20144 : 75 %6,0008 T ) H) — 1B
NRBBNEEMENERERZOBEE
ERAE UHAEERENEEAR

The title deeds in respect of an investment property
in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$82 million (2014:
HK$60 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
custody of the HKOCI pursuant to the relevant regulatory

requirements.
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TRE25]72015 F12 A31 BER&EH
EEFENAEEREMENLATE
EEMATERMN=-GOELE(ESE
REBYBHREERF135% [ A FEE
ENE - RAFEAESENELRZ
EEEREMASENTEREREE
MBERE-

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of investment
properties held by the Group measured at 31 December
2015 on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique.

2015 2014
BT BT T
HKS'000 HKS$'000
REMWNATETE Recurring fair value measurement
F=ER Level 3
R A Mainland China
[SEXZES Commercial properties 92,687 100,959
TEME Residential properties 1,700 1,779
By Car parks 2,828 3,024
97,215 105,762
N Hong Kong
EEXZES Commercial properties 82,000 60,000
179,215 165,762

AEBFREEAFEIIRNABREY
EERBRAFERBNE =-FNTE-
FRILRBERAFERBE=FHNE
B AEENBRARELEBNZR
HARBRAFERBESSAENES -

All the investment properties carried at fair value held
by the Group were measured using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. During the year there was no transfer
into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Group'’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.
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(b) ~F{HZEWSE =% E R

BREYEABILEXEE - F—KF
HuadhELREXBERAR AR LERK
HEEMEBERBR AR £2015F12
AMEM R FEEESEH - AKEDZRN
BERHRFREERA BB FETEHED
MmAREERRAGEEER-

AR BN EENERBEMNRTF
EXEARAERCEETF - FERARGE
HEN O ZEREDENBEMNNEER
AEREES R AERNEER TS A
He HMEDENER I E5% (2014
F:55%) mIHEARENFHFFEH KA
R#s580E ARKI1107T (20145 - AR
#12370) B E R R A3% (2014
F:3%) mEAHRSASEMARKE
8807T (2014%F : A R¥8807T) - A F1{A
HAEEEAMERERLEIE BHi5A
L2t R

fIR A B A3 B0 (E TR B A FERA
MIGLHLEIAETE W2 EA LR EEI
PGP REEABHEER X
SRR AV W) 5k B A L B K L BRI Y
FERR(FIMUEREE)ELEE
BN ARE BRARNGETER T
FENTABRBBLIIER -

MR EBNEEYEN LA FETEAT
BHEEAETF W2EM Y ETH
BETHFREEFENHEEER UK
AEBRYELRT LY E L RN
FRE (fIInREHBERAEEERE)
EE R EBRITENAR - ITER A
NFEBE - FRANEET 2R IT:E
R E B 0] BIREIE 4 A20% (2014
1 4932.3%) °

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on
their fair values at 31 December 2015 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited. The Group has discussed with the
independent professional valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results at each interim and
annual reporting date.

The fair value of commercial properties and car parks
located in Mainland China was determined by income
capitalisation approach. The significant unobservable
inputs are capitalisation rates of 5% (2014: 5.5%) and
market monthly rent ranged from RMB58 to RMB110
(2014: RMB123) per square meter for commercial
properties and 3% (2014: 3%) and RMB880 (2014:
RMB880) per unit for car parks were applied in valuation
measurement respectively. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate and
positively correlated to the market monthly rent.

The fair value of residential properties located in
Mainland China was determined by market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square meter basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
factors such as the location and quality of the Group’s
property while compared to the comparable properties.
The unobservable input for discount applied in valuation
measurement was immaterial.

The fair value of commercial properties located in Hong
Kong was determined by market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the factors such as the
longer period of tenancy and the larger floor area of the
Group’s properties while compared to the comparable
properties. Larger discount will result in a lower fair
value measurement. The significant unobservable input
for discount applied in valuation measurement was
approximately 20% (2014: approximately 32.3%).
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16 WEWHE (M) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

e 1. SN=A Lk . - .
REY N EFE () Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)
(b) 2 T (H 22t 56 = % & K (b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
( =) hierarchy (Continued)
FRNZELATFEEREE=ZSHNERE The movements in the balance of the Level 3 fair value
T hierarchy during the year are as follows:
2015 2014
mENE i BENE FENE
Commercial Eff  Residential BE  Commercial B Residential ek
properties Carparks  properties Total properties Car parks properties Total
BT BETR BEFT A¥TT A¥FT  EETRT B¥FT  BETI
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000 HKS000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKs 000
MAR At 1 January 160,959 3,024 1,779 165,762 150,266 2,844 1,715 154,825
ENE KEREE Reclassified from property, plant and
EZip equipment 3,275 - - 3,275 - - - -
NFERS/ (BB)  Fairvalue gains/(losses) 10,453 (196) (79) 10,178 10,693 180 64 10937
W128318 At 31 December 174,687 2,828 1,700 179,215 160959 3,004 1,779 165,762
ERRTABERY Total unrealised fair value gains/(losses)
[EtMs—F8] R forthe year recognised in the
BRNKERATE consolidated income statement
Wi/ (BB &% as part of “Other gains-net” 10,453 (196) (79) 10,178 10,693 180 64 10937
17 Ht&E A 17 ASSOCIATES
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
ERXFT—REZE QA (b) Loan to an associate (b) 10,717 16,334
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 3,266,559 2,929,556
3,277,276 2,945,890
ENAEABERE Reclassified to assets classified as
& E (355825) held for sale (Note 25) (13,299) -
& & 1A (a) Total investments (a) 3,263,977 2,945,890
JE BT - HRAK AR Unlisted investments, at cost 178,950 188,546
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17 WE o~ ()

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) NEBRBL AR ZHES M (a) The Group’s investments in associates are analysed
- below:
XIB Group Others Total
BYTF T BT T BETF T
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
201451 H41H At 1 January 2014 2,388,228 80,435 2,468,663
N E5 Translation difference (64,334) (1,023) (65,357)
JE A5 R B 12 0 7 Share of profit after taxation
B %5t A g A Profit before taxation 590,370 6,968 597,338
Frigf s Income tax expense (143,569) (1,549) (145,118)
EEIRKRE Dividend declared (104,860) - (104,860)
REEMAFHES Increase/(decrease) in investment
#in/ (EA) revaluation reserve 198,324 (4,638) 193,686
BEER Dilution of interest
REEEBRERA Gain on dilution recognised in
R EER = consolidated income statement 11,737 - 11,737
fEsNEEFERE Release of exchange translation
REBEEHFEE reserve and investment
S D revaluation reserve (10,199) - (10,199)
720145128318 K At 31 December 2014 and
2015F181H 1 January 2015 2,865,697 80,193 2,945,890
fE N ZE5 Translation difference (132,382) (1,211) (133,593)
B — KB 2N E] Formation of an associate = 1,150 1,150
FE(5 BR B 12 3 7 Share of profit after taxation
BR %54 Bl A Profit before taxation 710,844 3,267 714,111
Frigfi % i Income tax expense (192,871) (340) (193,211)
EEIREKRE Dividend declared (120,227) (22,325) (142,552)
REEHFES Increase/(decrease) in investment
#wm,/ Gd) revaluation reserve 48,908 (2,206) 46,702
BEEa Dilution of interest
REEERRA Gain on dilution recognised in
R ZEERS consolidated income statement 73,037 296 73,333
fesNEREREES Release of exchange translation
RIEEEHHEE reserve and investment
& B[Ol revaluation reserve (40,289) (320) (40,609)
JE(hHE & AR)3F A2 Dilution of interest in a subsidiary
—XMBARER held by an associate
Wi 11,672 = 11,672
BEBHER Loan partially repaid = (5,617) (5,617)
BN EAEELE  Reclassified to assets classified as held
MEE for sale = (13,299) (13,299)
72015128318 At31 December 2015 3,224,389 39,588 3,263,977
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

The loan represented the Group’s investments in
that associate and was unsecured, interest free and
had no fixed repayment terms.

XIB completed the issuance of new shares to third
parties to enlarge its share capital in August 2014,
which resulted in the dilution of the Company’s
shareholding in XIB from approximately 16.9333%
to approximately 14.8005%. Accordingly, the Group
recorded a gain on dilution of approximately
HK$11.74 million (Note 6). The Group also
transferred directly to retained profits in total of
approximately HK$121.71 million from statutory
reserve, general reserve and capital reserve
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in
XIB to approximately 14.8005%.

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its
approximately 14.8005% shareholding in XIB
immediately after the completion of the issuance
of the new shares and considered that the
Company will continue to have the ability to
exercise significant influence over the financial
and operating policy decisions of XIB. Accordingly,
the Company considers that XIB will continue to
be classified as an associate of the Company and
the Company'’s interest in XIB will continue to be
accounted for using equity method in accordance
with the HKFRSs.

XIB completed the issuance of new shares to
third parties to further enlarge its share capital in
June 2015, which resulted in the dilution of the
Company’s shareholding in XIB from approximately
14.8005% to approximately 10.6289%. Accordingly,
the Group recorded a gain on dilution of
approximately HK$73.04 million (Note 6) during the
year based on the unaudited consolidated financial
information of the Group for the period ended 30
June 2015 and the unaudited consolidated financial
information of XIB for the period ended 30 June
2015 as adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies. The Group also transferred
directly to retained profits in total of approximately
HK$307.97 million from statutory reserve, general
reserve and capital reserve attributable to the
dilution of the shareholding in XIB to approximately
10.6289%.
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B BB RE (A H T E 8R 4710.6289%
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(f)

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its
approximately 10.6289% shareholding in XIB
immediately after the completion of the issuance
of the new shares and considered that the
Company will continue to have the ability to
exercise significant influence over the financial
and operating policy decisions of XIB. Accordingly,
the Company considers that XIB will continue to
be classified as an associate of the Company and
the Company's interest in XIB will continue to be
accounted for using equity method in accordance
with the HKFRSs.

In December 2015, LIB, a subsidiary of XIB,
completed the issuance of new shares to enlarge its
share capital, which resulted in the dilution of XIB’s
shareholding in LIB from 100% to approximately
49.04% without losing its control in LIB. Accordingly,
the Group's share of the gain on dilution of XIB's
interest in LIB of HK$11.67 million was credited to
capital reserve in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

In December 2015, XIB completed the issuance
of bonus shares on the basis of 10 new shares for
every 10 existing shares with nominal value of RMB1
per share, an amount of approximately RMB3,193.13
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,810.52
million) was transferred from capital reserve to
issued share capital.

In February 2015, Fujian Hua Yuan City Construction
Environment Protection Co., Ltd. (“Hua Yuan”)
completed the issuance of new shares to enlarge
its share capital, which resulted in the dilution of
the Company’s shareholding in Hua Yuan from
25% to 21.05%. Accordingly, the Group recorded a
gain on dilution of approximately HK$0.3 million
(Note 6) during the year based on the unaudited
consolidated financial information of the Group and
Hua Yuan for the period ended 31 January 2015. The
Group also transferred directly to retained profits of
HK$0.01 million from statutory reserve attributable
to the dilution of the shareholding in Hua Yuan to
21.05%.

Bank deposits placed by the Group with associated
financial institutions in the normal course of
business are included in cash and bank balances
(Note 34(a)).
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of those
associates at 31 December 2015 which principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. All of these

R EAK. entities are unlisted corporates and are accounted for
using equity method.
EME ERAR  AZEH
KEMH BRREFE BRER .
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
BENRER Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
EPIEIB$E1T-  Xiamen International Bank, hEARLME 6,386.26 5 Bk 106289%  SRITRIBEER
LREMBAF  andits subsidiaries BRAR®IT
The People's 6,386.26 million Banking and
Republic of China  shares of RMB1 each investment holding
RFBIFRIRIT  Luso International 2P 2,610,0008% & 5.2126% iigh]
Banking Limited R FT%1,0007T
Macau  2.61 million shares Banking
of MOP1,000 each
EFEIFRRE  Xiamen International BB 1Bk 10.6289% RERR
BRAFE Investment Limited (B¥1ETL)
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
(HK$10,000) holding
BEREE Indirectly held
B{ESEHE  MinFaith Investments &k 100 40% BEZR
BRAA Limited (A#¥1007)
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
(HKS$100) holding
AIFBERE RIFEEBABERR hEARLAME EHER 19% PISE Al
BEBERR  BRARMe ARK5,0008 7T RZERiFEE
S|k BEWER RIHE
AR#2508 T
The People's Registered capital Development and
Republic of China of RMB50 million distribution of
Paid-in capital intelligent access
of RMB2.5 million door control system
(M WEHENGWIERE ERKEE (1) These associates are not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

&l
ATENER A EZ - BE LA
Al BEFENMBGRT AR D B
R AREB4T A HA%E 2 0.8%520.6%

o 2505 W

AEBBEBRUILHE AT ERTZH
&R BN B B2 R B e %
REERRITEERTEN -

(2)

The aggregate net assets and profit before
taxation attributable to these associates represent
approximately 0.8% and 0.6% respectively of the

Group's consolidated totals.

(2)

The Group has the ability to exercise significant

influence over the financial and operating
policy decisions of this associate through its
representative on the board of directors of this

associate.
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the material
associate, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

EiREH
XIB Group
2015 2014
BT T BB F T
HKS'000 HKS'000
BEQNT T ZEHARE Gross amount of the associate's
BE Assets 548,051,749 436,113,945
=K Liabilities (514,826,229) | (416,751,779)
?ﬁam AR HE = Non-controlling interests (2,889,469) -
BERRERREA Equity attributable to equity holders of
FE(L R the associate 30,336,051 19,362,166
WA Revenue 25,719,259 20,602,380
FREAS A T Profit from continuing operations 4,098,965 2,803,574
H b2 WS Other comprehensive income 527,303 1,205,736
T HEKEARE Total comprehensive income 4,626,268 4,009,310
TR S Dividend declared 120,227 104,860
HIEZAEER Reconciled to the Group's interest
BE QTN ER in the associate
B N A EEFER Gross amount of net assets of the associate 30,336,051 19,362,166
rEERNE ﬁf’\ﬁsﬁn Group's effective interest 10.6289% 14.8005%
fre B mEe Carrying amount in the consolidated
FREE financial statements 3,224,389 2,865,697
I FE 1R 51 22 K RO B & A B /O BE 48 B RHE Aggregate information of associates that are not
BT individually material is disclosed below:
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
&R & B % ik M 3F Aggregate carrying amount of individually
&8 B1) 2 K A B & =) immaterial assocates in the consolidated
FERE (BB financial statements 39,588 80,193
AEEREGZEH Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of
T3 & IBEMBEE those associates'
BEE E%i’k il Profit from continuing operations 3,138 5,419
H b2 W Other comprehensive income (3,407) (5,305)
2 HE W REE Total comprehensive income (269) 114
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18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
2015 2014
BT T B FoT
HKS$'000 HKS'000
M1A18 At 1 January 770,129 452,522
#7 (b) Additions (b) 864 156,206
REEEHFEESLER 2 Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in
NFE(EE), W investment revaluation reserve (42,280) 318,453
& & (b) Disposal (b) = (157,052)
M12A31H At 31 December 728,713 770,129
BATE: At fair value:
PR 8 25 Equity securities listed
— A B A T (a) — in Mainland China (a) 727,920 770,129
—-REBLM - in Hong Kong 793 -
M12A31H At 31 December 728,713 770,129

(a)

AEBF20155 K 2014F12A31H
BEMIHEESREEANLE
BEXSAT ETRIREEEDT

The equity securities listed in Mainland China
held by the Group at 31 December 2015 and 2014
represented equity securities listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange as follows:

oF i it B TEXHB FEBHNEYER

Place of Principal Group's

DEAB Company name incorporation activities effective interest
ERBIRE NG Huaneng Power International, Inc. ~ 1 #E AR H£HE BHERHEE N 0.5%
BRAR ([F8]) ("Huaneng”) (#76,9958 A AR )
The People's Generation and sale (approximately

B A AL R B B IA BT R
HEABBARB HEERAREG
Yoas B R A5 B B o [ UtE - AR ER
BN EMbzmb S NER L&
BRESRHBESZANRARTHRF
BEEBIRBEHIELEE-

20145 REBEP BN E A
MHEFLETHBARES -AEH
RS HEWRRLEE131E T (5
6) o

Republic of China

of electric power  69.95 million A-Share)

The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China had
issued certificate of tax exemption for the gain from
the disposal of A-Share of Huaneng by the Company
in previous year. Accordingly, the Group has not
provided any tax provision against the fair value
movements recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the
investment revaluation reserve.

During 2014, the Group acquired and disposed
unlisted open-ended funds in Mainland China. The
Group recorded a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$1.31 million (Note 6).
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19 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

2015 2014

BT T JEMTF T

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

M1A1H At 1 January 12,738 9,983
F R M Increase during the year 26,441 12,336
F N B o] Release during the year (24,118) (9,581)
®W12A31H At 31 December 15,061 12,738

20 R P E i 3k

20 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE

2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
RIE &40 B AR FX Due from agents, brokers and intermediates 15,354 10,641
BB EEE Less: Impairment losses = (7)
15,354 10,634
BB EARR Due from contract holders 108 9
BREE AR Due from reinsurers 129 1
15,591 10,644

R UK R D 2 EEHR — AR H90
£

RENORNE (R EUR 2 EEIRK
(BREAHFEHE=-FHLAER) AR

REEANBRE-

The credit period for the majority of insurance receivable
normally ranges from 90 to 120 days. The credit terms
of insurance receivable, including whether guarantees
from third parties are required, are determined by senior
management.
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20 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of insurance

ot (REZAH) T : receivable by invoice date was as follows:
2015 2014
BT BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
30 Within 30 days 7,927 4,814
31E60H 31-60 days 2,793 2,501
61%90H 61-90 days 2,612 2,352
8890 H Over 90 days 2,259 977
15,591 10,644

20155128318 E BB R REDN
R B FE WK Y BR S D AT 40 T

At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the past
due but not impaired insurance receivable was as

follows:

2015 2014
BT T B F T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
90H A Within 90 days 3,351 2,249
BB R Over 90 days 59 110
3,410 2,359

PR Bt & 21 REINSURANCE ASSETS
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000

BREB AEMREEME  Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities

(7£%826) (Note 26) 4,855 5,667

ﬁf%&)\ﬂﬁﬁi’ilﬁdﬁ DIRE HE A
MEEENFBATANBRREENA
ﬁEuZ“E% B £+ AR U (SERE20)

The amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims
already paid by the Group on the contracts that are
reinsured are not recognised in the reinsurance assets.
They are included in insurance receivable (Note 20).
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1% ,‘TJ\&JT_‘q)L?T‘[J o

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLE

2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000
NEERER Micro credit business
—RERNEEXK - guaranteed micro loans 161,828 155,116
—\HPEER - secured micro loans 162,057 149,223
—ERRERNEER - pledged and guaranteed micro loans 11,456 6,942
— - B RER - secured, pledged and guaranteed
NEE R micro loans 6,918 -
EFEXR Loans to customers 342,259 311,281
JE W R B Interest receivable 12,053 2,883
354,312 314,164
BB S Impairment allowances
— & Bl &F & - individually assessed (159,602) (33,512)
—Ha T - collectively assessed (2,532) (5,165)
___{162134) | (38,677)
192,178 275,487
RMEBPTERN ST Analysed for reporting purposes as:
—JERBEE - Non-current assets 1,519 -
—mEBEE - Current assets 190,659 275,487
192,178 275,487

NEEREBEENEPERAARE

HE B REEFH RN FIEE216

E£3014$ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%s@%&zu@)
KREER EFE SIBBR W B E
AT EERB AEBETREFRARK
BE Ez%?iifff R K JE UG FI) B BT A =
BHEEEEEE Eﬂ%)ﬁfﬁfk&m&ﬂ,

HERE - FEEFERREEFIRE
FrEAEIER (ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁfs‘?g&{%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ)
URBEFEEFMEMNEERE RER
EBHENEFHNEEEERHE-

Loans to customers arising from the micro credit
business are in Renminbi and bore a fixed interest rate
ranged from 9% to 21.6% per annum (2014: ranged from
18% to 22.4% per annum).

The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group has reviewed the outstanding loans to customers
and interest receivable at the reporting date to assess
whether there is objective evidence that an impairment
on loans to customers and interest receivable has been
incurred. The evaluation is focused on the information
specific to the customers (such as the financial
background and ability to repay) as well as the economic
environment in which the customers operate and
management'’s judgement on the creditworthiness of
individual customer.



22 HF SR ERA R (4)

—E—HRFEFIR Annual Report 2015

RN R e
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST

FARFER & EWF B EEES The movement of impairment allowances on loans to
wnr customers and interest receivable during the year was as
follows:
2015 2014
BRI AaE AR ST
Individually  Collectively % Individually  Collectively o]
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BEFT  BEFn  BETI | EETr  EETr EETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
M ATE At 1 January 33,512 5,165 38,677 - 835 835
EHER Translation difference (6,362) (141) (6,503) (170) (43) (213)
EEEFBEHER  Charged/(credited) to current
k% / (328) year's income statement 139,277 (2,492) 136,785 33,682 4373 38,055
AFREELA  Unwinding of discount on
BHEN allowance (6,825) - (6,825) - - 2
R12A31H At 31 December 159,602 2,532 162,134 33,512 5,165 38,677

R2015F12831H BFE
DM (L TFTEFEXRBE) T :

RA RHR

At 31 December 2015, the loan contract period of the
loans to customers by date of loans granted was as

follows:
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS'000 HKS$'000
30 A Within 30 days 2,172 —
31£90H 31-90 days 15,824 13,496
91£180H 91-180 days 121,945 168,571
181£365H 181-365 days 200,766 129,214
BiE365H Over 365 days 1,552 =
342,259 311,281
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LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST

RECEIVBALE (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the credit quality of the loans to

Bt an N customers was summarised as follows:
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000
FEHH KRR E Neither past due nor impaired 48,615 217,508
B @ HE R E Past due but not impaired 25,075 23,743
ERIE RE Individually impaired 268,569 70,030
342,259 311,281

M2015F12 8318 S @ HERFBEY

At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the past

BEFERERE>TOT due but not impaired loans to customers was as follows:

2015 2014

EBETFrT BT T

HK$'000 HKS'000

308 A Within 30 days 149 13,746

31260H 31-60 days 164 9,997

61290H 61-90 days 1,790 -

BidmooR Over 90 days 22,972 -

25,075 23,743

75/\201 56128318 - AR ERERFE At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of individually
FRECDATIAT - impaired loans to customers was as follows:

2015 2014

BT T BT T

HKs'000 HKS$'000

90H N Within 90 days 42,838 36,290

91£180H 91-180 days 24,046 33,740

1812365 H 181-365 days 141,659 -

iBiB365H Over 365 days 60,026 -

268,569 70,030
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22 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST

RECEIVBALE (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of overdue
interest receivable arising from the loans to customers

by due date was as follows:

2015 2014
B F T B FT
HKS$'000 HKS'000
308 A Within 30 days 410 565
31£60H 31-60 days 583 886
61290H 61-90 days 642 745
#BiB90H Over 90 days 10,418 687
12,053 2,883
20155124318 « & P B E £ 1) & At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the past
WAlLE (B @ EERBE)RE D0 due but not impaired interest receivable arising from the
N loans to customers was as follows:
2015 2014
BETT BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
30 Within 30 days 25 285
31260H 31-60 days 95 144
61290H 61-90 days 93 -
BiB90H Over 90 days 836 =
1,049 429
WA TGRSR &R 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
=R THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2015 2014
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
BIEEERERS - Equity securities held for trading, listed in
REBLEm—&mE Hong Kong - at market value 8,095 7,194
Bl B SRAT & AT 24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
RS RBTEFRERARBEER Included in cash and bank balances are deposits
R E A B8 RORFETRTZ of approximately RMB1,136.53 million (equivalent
FRHOARM113,6538 T (FELD to approximately HK$1,356.28 million) (2014:
/%@5135,+3§1% 7T ) (291{[¢ : %’U/\++ approximately RMB971.26 million, equivalent to
%97,1268 7T HFEWEH121,3738 approximately HK$1,213.73 million) placed with certain
JT) ° banks in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau by the

Group.
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24 Bia KR4

fifr (f)
REFEREM2 AT FHBEY—

B ARGEE AT LRABE

16008 T2 B NRBEEERFAZ

ERBARITFER-MN2015F12A8318
FKIBTT AR B

EZW%/&ETE’:\%E?%—
BERPEETFMAREK13908 T (£E
#)7BH1,6598 7T ) M B ﬁ%moé-%ﬁ(zom
F %%1600%7‘5)ZEHHT KA &
EERTE-ZMNMB AR IR R
1,340%’71(%13%’95%@51301{2'%71)&%7
AR 3688 T (5 E A B #4398 70)
(20145 : 491 Fﬂﬁﬁwo%ﬁ SELE
#1,1558 7T ) 2 RITE AT EBRPIIR
SEBE HEGZE THEE-

BRIBEARRETNEREE (;F1828)
R E KA—E$&?$ﬁ$Ef?ﬁ%£A
Eﬁ%moo%fu(#@%ﬁ,‘%%%%%ﬁ)
(201445 : AR #32,4008 7T EEL B
ﬁg404891¥]ﬁ)?’fﬁihfﬁﬁﬂzﬁjﬁﬁﬁuu

INBITARRRIMNERE(E-

»%

T A FHEH BN EE

2015%F6 A AR A E— R RE
FIIVEEHE UREREBHARK
1,0958 7T (S EABE1,3068 ) HE
RARFE —FKEE QA EIR21.05%%
wE(CTIERE]) -

RIE LR ADFARBRIER A D
85 15 5 R B AR
TR (E = B3R 1 e W B 1 S 3EE
B R R IR AR T
& Rtk ZREEF DA FLE
ﬁ%@@ﬁAE%mm%ﬁ(#ﬁﬁ%

ey 270%71)1%2015&12)% NHESE
SRR NE L 25 -

RZAFRHE A ARSI EES
BB R 4 7 5 K -

24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements from the HKOCI in
Hong Kong, a subsidiary shall maintain at all times
a portion of its funds of not less than HK$16 million
in the name of Insurance Authority account in bank
deposits. At 31 December 2015, that subsidiary has
placed a fixed deposit of RMB13.9 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$16.59 million) and HK$1 million
(2014: HK$16 million) in the name of Insurance Authority
account with a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment of
such requirements. That subsidiary has also maintained
bank deposits of MOP13.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$13.01 million) and approximately
RMB3.68 million (equivalent to approximately HK$4.39
million) (2014: approximately MOP11.9 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$11.55 million) for
fulfilling certain requirements under the Macau
Insurance Companies Ordinance.

Pursuant to the requirements of the loan facilities (Note
28) entered into by the Company, the Company had
charged its bank deposits of RMB41 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$48.93 million) (2014: RMB324
million, equivalent to approximately HK$404.89 million)
to the lending banks as collaterals for the fulfillment of
the Company’s repayment obligations.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

In June 2015, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Vigour Fine, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the sale of its 21.05%
equity interest (“Equity Interest”) in Hua Yuan, an
associate of the Company, at a cash consideration
of approximately RMB10.95 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$13.06 million).

Based on the above fact, the Company considered that
the Equity Interest met the criteria to be classified as
held for sale because the carrying amount was recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through a continuing use and the Equity Interest was
available for sale in its present condition. Accordingly,
the Equity Interest was reclassified as held for sale and
the carrying amount of approximately RMB10.64 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$12.7 million) was
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2015.

The completion of the transaction is subject to the
registration of the transfer of the Equity Interest with the
relevant approval authority in Mainland China.
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2 N AR B A e 26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS
2015 2014
EBEFT BT T
HKS'000 HKS$'000
EH Gross
EERRERBLAAE Claims reported and loss adjustment
] expenses 25,415 16,467
BEEBERERRE Claims incurred but not reported 24,727 23,370
50,142 39,837
FmERE Unearned premiums 36,106 31,357
7R B R B Unexpired risks provision 1,402 992
REETEAE =58 Total insurance liabilities, gross 87,650 72,186
EWBREARE Recoverable from reinsurers
EERTERBLAARE Claims reported and loss adjustment
ZH expenses (22) (254)
BELEBEREHRRE Claims incurred but not reported (3,782) (4,812)
(3,804) (5,066)
RmEIRE Unearned premiums (1,051) (601)
BREAEGLRBESE Total reinsurers' share of insurance
e (s E21) liabilities (Note 21) (4,855) (5,667)
=2l Net
EERRERBLAAE Claims reported and loss adjustment
=9 expenses 25,393 16,213
BEEERERRE Claims incurred but not reported 20,945 18,558
46,338 34,771
FmERE Unearned premiums 35,055 30,756
R B R B Unexpired risks provision 1,402 992
REETHE FH Total insurance liabilities, net 82,795 66,519

EERREEH BLAREBEARDH
EERERREFETNHBCHNRE
HA R] {8 18 % B A #E W [0 O SRRR o

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net of
expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.
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26 PR A %

APSEER

B i ()

26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment expenses

2015 2014
EX | BRE RE £t BfRl ek
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
BETT BEFT BETFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
EE2REGE Notified claims 16,467 (254) 16,213 13,365 (242) 13,123
BRERRER Incurred but not reported 23,370 (4,812) 18,558 20,050 (4,115) 15,935
RA1R At 1 January 39,837 (5,066) 34,771 33,415 (4,357) 29,058
ERNABEENA  Cash paid for claims settled
R during the year (9,872) 804 (9,068) (9,377) (780) (10,157)
BEEEM/ (A7)  Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
=S EF@;B* & arising from current year claims 11,033 (393) 10,640 9,003 (27) 8,976
TFEARRE arising from prior year claims 7,787 (179) 7,608 3,476 795 4,271
BEERRZ i& movement of provision for
k8 claims incurred but not
reported 1,357 1,030 2,387 3320 (697) 2,623
R12A31H At 31 December 50,142 (3,804) 46,338 39,837 (5,066) 34,771
BEHREGE Notified claims 25,415 (22) 25,393 16,467 (254) 16,213
ERERRER Incurred but not reported 24,727 (3,782) 20,945 23,370 (4,812) 18,558
R12A31H At 31 December 50,142 (3,804) 46,338 39,837 (5,066) 34,771
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26 TR G# LA EE (4) 26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) K T R 2 HE {5 4 56 (b) Movement in provision for unearned premiums

2015 2014

E ] BRE FE 8 BiRRE FH

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

M A1H At 1 January 31,357 (601) 30,756 28,388 (818) 27,570

FNEM Increase during the year 33,313 (1,051) 32,262 28,313 (599) 27,714

FAKE Release during the year (28,564) 601 (27,963) (25,344) 816 (24,528)

M12831H At 31 December 36,106 (1,051) 35,055 31,357 (601) 30,756

KRR EEEHEE RAKEAAEER
ZWMEARARBANEHRRBREOEE -

(c) A i 1A Jl B HE A 4 S0 )

Provision for unearned premiums represents the
liabilities for short-term insurance contracts for which
the Group’s obligations are not expired at the reporting

date.

(c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks

2015 2014
EX ERR #H 4 BRE FE
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BYEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
®1A18 At 1 January 992 = 992 = = =
FHEM Increase during the year 410 - 410 992 = 992
M12A31A8 At 31 December 1,402 - 1,402 992 - 992

R HA R B 2R A BN SR TR S B
BEBLEEARBREEBEORR
BHEB-

The provision for unexpired risk relates to the insurance
contracts for which the Group expects to pay claims in
excess of the related provision for unearned premiums.

183



B{E5&@EAMR 2 8 Min Xin Holdings Limited

GO AT R A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R2015F12 8318 @ RIR E XA R

o (REZBH)WT

27 INSURANCE PAYABLE

At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the

insurance payable by invoice date was as follows:

2015 2014
BT JEMTF T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
308 A Within 30 days 3,880 3,010
31%260H 31-60 days 1,915 1,362
61%90H 61-90 days 1,801 1,339
#BidooR Over 90 days 1,222 348
8,818 6,059
28 SRATHE K 28 BANK BORROWINGS
2015 2014
BT BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
REBITER Long-term bank loans
B LAB L AERIL(a)  Secured, in HK Dollars (a) 615,850 199,097
EHIRITER Short-term bank loans
BT ABTAEBER(b) Secured, in HK Dollars (b) = 380,000
615,850 579,097
B BEERRBBEANZ  Less: Amounts due within one year
—F RN R H A IR included in current liabilities (113,734) (429,567)
EHEFRAN—F1& Portion of term loan due for
IHERES (B repayment after one year which
SREREER contain a repayment on demand
) (o) clause (c) = (149,530)
502,116 -
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28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

RIS RBEMES N EHERBH R The maturity profile of the bank loans based on the

TEFRIBHENAT: scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan facilities
is as follows:

2015 2014

BT BB F T

HKS'000 HKS'000

F—FN Within 1 year 113,734 429,567

ZHR—FERMENA  More than 1 year but within 2 years 147,968 69,683

ZIAMEERAEFA  More than 2 years but within 5 years 354,148 79,847

615,850 579,097

RABR2014F IR IEEFE —RIRTT
REMNEEEERIIEEHER
BEUE L ZERFR=ZFRNE
iEo EEEM*)‘SA%EHE, X S
KL BB TN IR E 25 iR
ﬁmﬁ ADRIRENDEERS

55,0008 T °

RER - RIE LG RITRAMS
1“1*E%EF ARAREEEAH
XA 475848 L ZEFF N
“HENER - BEEBBERRITER
H) 32 %WZ&Z’J%%%%E?EA}IH
BB RRITHR

e e Ll

W%T’E%ﬁﬁﬁ’%%%ﬁézow% A
31H M EREFE L B 1,0448 7T
(20144 : 97 H1,0708 7T) - N E
MR AR 1T E KR A KR R Al 1E
REFIRITRSRITERA R 4,100
BT (ZENB48938 ) 1EE
FABITARAIMEBRE T

BERFANESHNEEREE AQ
A A GE IR AN A B B HE I IR R AR
REEE AN ZEBERNERT
EARR (EmEEKBE) B %
ITRR AR D A35%H) B 2528 ©
RITEZMF BB BETRE
WEMBZFE 72015512 H31
H BERFEAERNFINEE34E
(20145 : FF|E31[EF) »

(a)

In 2014, the Company drew down a floating rate
term loan of HK$200 million payable within three
years under a loan facility obtained from a bank in
Hong Kong. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the bank loan of approximately HK$0.99 million
were deducted by the bank when the loan was
drawn down. The Company has repaid the principal
of HK$50 million during the year.

During the year, the Company drew down a floating
rate term loan of HK$475.84 million payable within
three years under another loan facility obtained
from the above bank in Hong Kong. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the bank loan of
approximately HK$9.61 million were deducted by
the bank when the loan was drawn down.

Both of these bank loans were secured by the self-
use office building owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value of
approximately HK$10.44 million at 31 December
2015 (2014: approximately HK$10.7 million) and
the bank loan drew down during the year was
also secured by bank deposits of RMB41 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$48.93 million)
placed with the lending bank for the fulfillment of
the Company’s repayment obligations.

Pursuant to the loan facility obtained during the
year, the Company undertook to procure FIDG,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, to
maintain (whether directly or indirectly) not less
than 35% beneficial interests in the issued share
capital of the Company during the term of the loan
facility.

These bank loans bore interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate at 31 December 2015 ranged from
3.1% to 3.4% per annum (2014: 3.1% per annum).
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WRATE K (H) 28
(o) RER AARERHAFE KR
TRENEHRTREREFEE
2,000& 7T RN EHmA 271 K
NAIE2BERERRITERER

2% ﬁﬁfﬁhﬂﬁiﬁféf%xz}& A1z
MRAE RSB ITHARBERER
?ﬁbxﬁfiﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬁi%?xﬁ{{(zom
F: ARE32,4008 7T SEABE
40,489& 7T ) °

ﬂAﬂ’%iHﬁfﬁ ﬂé g\
BIRITRIZERBEME

RigERH % =18 A Wét ZER
HSRITRIRE R E R KA
2B ZFE2.2[F (2014 i%ljﬁﬁﬁ’uz
EZE22[E) -

() BARACRFABEEREEM
B ESKEEGER -

1R 4 Fir 158 29

ELEFEHREAABEEINEREER
ﬁ,@ﬂazm $16.5% (2014%F : 16.5% )
Ko A B A b 5 T 2 B 2R 25% (20144F ¢
25% ) E2HEE - EREATENTBE
%ﬁﬁﬁ%@*%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ~ﬁﬁ
IEFTS T I [/ — i 5 1 B 4 (/) — (e
ﬁmgﬁ Bl A] # R AT P15 7 8 B B
EFSHiaEE AEE-

BIEFMBREE (AfE) ZEFHMT

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b) During the year, the Company drew down a short
term revolving bank loan of HK$20 million from a
bank in Hong Kong and fully repaid the outstanding
short term revolving bank loans of HK$400 million
subsequently prior to the reporting date.

These short term revolving bank loans were
secured by Renminbi bank deposits placed with the
lending banks for the fulfillment of the Company’s
repayment obligations (2014: RMB324 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$404.89 million).

These short term revolving bank loans bore interest
at a spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
and were repayable within three months from the
drawdown date. The effective interest rate ranged
from 2% to 2.2% per annum (2014: ranged from 2%
to 2.2% per annum).

(c) The lender had cancelled the repayment on
demand clause contained in the loan facility during
the year.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and
25% (2014: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) is as follows:

2015 2014
BET T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
MR1A18 At 1 January (43,949) (45,201)
PE W = %8 Translation differences (280) (20)
EEFEBERLE Deferred income tax credited to current
ZIEFS]R year’s income statement 9,524 1,272
EREEMNFH ﬁi B Deferred income tax credited to investment
BR 2 IRIEFTIBR revaluation reserve 12 -
EHEREEMHE Deferred income tax charged to leasehold
SR ZELEMEH buildings revaluation reserve (521) -
M12H31H At 31 December (35,214) (43,949)
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AR HE T A5 Bl (46

BEFBHREEEBEBREFER
B 0] L B R AR B AR B s M) 3R M gk
Fréses 2 FIBVEMERR - 72015512 A31
B AN B KRR A LA S R R FERR
Tl A B R IB 4078 #3318 7T (20144F ¢
BB 3448 7T) - ML TR I SR A -

RERNEEREHREERAEBEZEY
(H[F— T Wl 2 FE BRI SHAT) I T

\D my

A% S T 15 B B AR

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profits
is probable. At 31 December 2015, the Group did not
recognise tax losses of approximately HK$330 million
(2014: approximately HK$344 million) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income and have no
expiry date.

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same
taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

MEBRITER
REWMEEM
Accelerated tax depreciation
and revaluation of
investment properties

2015 2014

BT BT T

HKS'000 HKS'000

M1A18 At 1 January 48,912 46,157

EEFEEZERIB  Charged to current year's income statement 1,443 2,755
EHEEEEMRFHAE Charged to leasehold buildings revaluation

=k reserve 521 =

®12A31H At 31 December 50,876 48,912

187



B{E5%EAMR 2 3 Min Xin Holdings Limited

A IR R TR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 WRIE AR (45)
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

AfHESHEE ERRERRS

NYERE HEER
Fair value adjustment Loans and
&R for available-for-sale interest receivable g ag
Accrued expenses financial assets impairment allowances Tax losses Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BEF | BRTL | BEFL | B¥TL | BETRL | BETL | BRI | BN T | BRTR | BE TR
HK$'000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HK$000 | HKS000
MAR At 1 January (326) (256) - - (3,930) - (707) (700) (4,963) (956)
EXZR Translation differences - - - - 280 20 - - 280 20
EEFEEER  Charged/(credited) to
fk/ (8%)  currentyear's
income statement 27 (70) - - (2,788) (3,950) (8,206) 7| (10,967) (4,027)
EREEEEE  Credited to investment
2k revaluation reserve - A (12) - 5 - - - (12) -
R12A31A At 31 December (299) (326) (12) - (6,438) (3,930) (8,913) (707) | (15,662) (4,963)

EfABEEBREECHMSREERE
Bk ToMELE BB RARN

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities,

N are shown in the consolidated statement of financial

position:
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000

RAEFMSHEE Deferred income tax assets

A& 1 21E A & W e To be recovered after 12 months 6,440 4,156
#1218 A R [ To be recovered within 12 months 306 125
6,746 4,281

ELEFSHEasE Deferred income tax liabilities
#5218 A 12 5 To be settled after 12 months (41,960) (48,230)
(35,214) (43,949)
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(a) B

(a) Share capital

EERTRAEREZ Ordinary shares, issued and

EER fully paid
R1A1H At 1 January
R2014F3A3HBEE  Transition to no-par value
BEEEFE() regime on 3 March 2014 (i)
R12A31H At 31 December

EBRRFE AR BRI E TR K
BoYEBRREHLAERE —EHOR
SR -FAEBERBRNERNABNEGE
EHEARFHES-

(i) BERAFHED (5622F ) 1420144
3)%35;’&&?& BB MK A
ARIMROEEAESEENHE ST
BEE-REZBQREHM RN
FI7EMBE MR Rz B K’
DRERNEAELFESHOEIM
EE“ 8 K ARRRIRARN—
oo WESBEEBEITRMHEE
&Eﬂﬂx%Z%ﬂIﬁ%;

2015 2014
R EE BEFT Ri7EH BEFT
No. of shares HKs’000 No. of shares HKS'000
459,428,656 891,135 459,428,656 459,429
- - - 431,706
459,428,656 891,135 459,428,656 891,135

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

(i)

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622)
came into effect on 3 March 2014 and the concept
of par or nominal value for shares of Hong Kong
incorporated companies is no longer exist. On that
date, the amounts standing to the credit of the
share premium account and the capital redemption
reserve account had become part of the Company’s
share capital in accordance with the transitional
provisions set out in Section 37 of Schedule 11
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
changes had no impact on the number of shares
in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the
members.
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30 BEA K4 (58)

(b) Tt 4 Wy B K i

(i)

JETE R E

EEREBEZIEZRE:

—RBESREBRECRPILER
T BB R R B EERE i A
BUZ A NEREERES -

—REE S BB R IR B B
FCE R ERREBRINE 12 M
%) (B 21200514958 ) 58 37 ) — 4%
-z MEBEAFBOERE
B YWiEAMAEE=AKTD
AR RSZHNEERES

1B

fFEES DR S MBI E— A&

(i) EXGFEED

BERFHSBE:

20011 A1 B AR BLETE & 6F R 3%
EHE N MEEANEERAEE
EEREENRBEE AaF
RS ARBENRFEFESRAKAE
B8

N E) R BB AR A
RERNEMBREBEFREES
B AL

AR A RET SR AL RIS
N B R 0 B BB 3 A MR O
CELTR

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

(ii)

Non-distributable reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained profits in
accordance with the Financial System Act of Macau.

General reserve established and maintained
within equity holders’ equity of an associated
financial institution pursuant to Caijin [2005] No.
49 “Measures on General Provision for Bad and
Doubtful Debts for Financial Institutions” issued
by Ministry of Finance. The general reserve was
established through the appropriation of income to
cover unidentified potential impairment losses.

General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits
and is available for general use.

(iii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

goodwill and the excess of the Group's interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of business combination and the investments
in associates prior to 1 January 2001;

capitalisation of retained profits and reserves for the
purpose of increasing the share capital and capital
reserve of associates and their subsidiaries;

share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of associates for the change in the interest in their
subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control.
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(b) Tt WME A (48)
(iv) REERGFES
&ﬁi%%%@@%%%%%%hﬁm
AHEEsREEN R R TFEE
B|(HREBECHES L) -

(v) HEEREEH#EL
HEEEERFHEcRIEHEERNE
TERYEETOEAKREWE B
EENATEZEFE

(i) SMEWTEFED

SN BT B ﬁﬁ%a%@ﬁi%ﬁ%
NEtE N RN SRR EARARD ﬁ\
WBEEEMNEEL Z58-

A

201512 A318 » N & B A & & 10
|

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

31

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets (less related deferred tax charge)
held at the end of the reporting period.

(v) Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings
at the date of reclassification from owner-occupied
property to investment property.

(vi) Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising on translation of

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and
associates into the reporting currency of the Company.

COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2015, the Group had commitments as
follows:

2015 2014
B FT BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EELNERESE Contracted but not provided for

— W I REES — property, plant and equipment/
wEME investment properties 198 207
—EBELEE -BRER —intangible assets — computer systems 1,632 =
—EHRER—REZE QT —investment in an associate 10,203 -
12,033 207
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(a) A FH A
M2015F12 A31H @ A& B R 7] 5

W EEREMARARI N 2 HER
ERFHMT

32

LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) As lessee

At 31 December 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments payable under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2015 2014
B FT B FT
HKS'000 HKS$'000
B E Land and buildings
F—FNR Within one year 677 246
F_FEFRFNRN In the second to fifth year
(BREEMF) inclusive 801 560
1,478 806
(b) HHA (b) As lessor

M2015F12 A31H @ A& B R 1~ 7]
§H 2 s B TR E R R AR R W ER 2 S K AR

At 31 December 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments receivable under non-

ERFRIAT cancellable operating leases as follows:
2015 2014
BYT T B FoT
HKS'000 HKS'000
B B Land and buildings
EF—FNRN Within one year 9,475 8,747
F_FEFRFN In the second to fifth year
(BREEMF) inclusive 22,539 21,108
FRNEFE RIAIE In the sixth year and thereafter = 3,840
32,014 33,695

AEEEBECAENE 2 HEFHH—
FENFAZ HEHRZEEJIEE

MR-

The lease terms for commercial properties leased out
by the Group range from one to eight years and with
unfixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

T A R outflow from operations
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
BR %51 A& A Profit before taxation 486,020 491,202
P Adjustments for:
i NG Share of results of associates (520,900) (452,220)
B N A R A E Gains on dilution of interest in

B U 2% associates (73,333) (11,737)
KEMEE-HRFE Fair value gains on revaluation of

& investment properties (10,178) (10,937)
e Depreciation 1,417 1,343
EFERKERFE Impairment loss on loans to

REE 8 customers and interest receivable 136,785 38,055
R b2 FE W ROR (B B 18 Written back of impairment loss on

(g insurance receivable (7) (16)
HEME  #Has REE Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

EBE (k) plant and equipment 174 (91)
FEMKA Interest income (33,868) (33,252)
BEREFERNE Interest income from impaired loans

A to customers (6,825) =
MBEXH Interest expenses 12,958 7,016
bE 5 B 1R % %E Net exchange losses 29,509 20,521

RBESEHIE) Changes in working capital:
I S BR A5 ﬁ$i“ jJI] Increase in deferred acquisition costs (2,323) (2,755)
IR B2 U R 38 0 Increase in insurance receivable (4,940) (256)
BREEERD Decrease/(increase) in reinsurance

(#hn) assets 812 (492)
EEERRERF B Increase in loans to customers and

#n interest receviable (54,171) (273,425)
H b JiE U BR AL 0 Increase in other debtors (44) (5)
EMEMTREES (Increase)/decrease in other

(&) /b prepayments and deposits (3,250) 433
Tﬁ’&i@?ﬁ?@ﬁﬁ?&ﬁuﬂﬁﬁ’\] (Increase)/decrease in financial assets

SRVEE (M), R at fair value through profit or loss (901) 895
RERE 49380 Increase in insurance contracts 15,464 10,383
R B FE A~ FR A8 N Increase in insurance payable 2,759 1,350
Hﬁﬂfﬁ A ESTER (Decrease)/increase in other creditors

CRA) /1 and accruals (3,317) 3,149
KEEPR e TLFE Net cash outflow from operations (28,159) (210,839)
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BRRAGEMBRREMEBYEEIN
AEBELEXRBRENETZIEANH

i

(a)

XIWMEBMT

MR2015F12831H AEBEFR
EREBE(REE I BERT)
BT KA 58 61,0538 7T (2014
F B ¥A7,1558 70) W EFHE
FELN—REEMNEFE - A&H
RF R I P E £ B R B A B
#1,1258 7 (20144 : 75 %1,0628
JL) °

RER AEB—KK B R AIFAR
— KB X R AY R B T S EFABR 3T
HENERBIRAAHEE3I78E
70 (20144 - B #2498 7T) ' b5
REAAEEAREME=BRFR
FIBelzaRMBEMERESR-
ZHB AR IR EAG L e R
AENEETFASERESFAS

7B 54858 7T (20144 : 7B 4558
JC) °

RABIREFERTPEABNET
BEY —IERBREEREEEEERF
B30%EZ M — KR ) R20154F
67 ARABFY—HEFHNEERE
HEAR HEHRB2015F671
BRABEWMEA BAHEEAAR
#71,2807T ° Itb M0 4 A B HA RS )2
BB -RERN AQARIWERES
HARESIE T (FELEKe6E
7T) (2014F : Y ARKE78E T &
B BB TT) °

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related
party transactions which were carried out in the normal
course of the Group's business are as follows:

(a)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had deposits
with XIB and LIB, associates of the Group, totaling
HK$610.53 million (2014: HK$471.55 million). These
deposits carried interest at normal commercial rates
and had generated interest income of HK$11.25
million (2014: HK$10.62 million) to the Group during
the year.

A subsidiary of the Group underwrote insurance
policies with gross insurance premium less discount
of HK$3.78 million (2014: HKS$2.49 million) to an
associate of the Group at prices and terms not less
favourable than those contracted with other third
party customers of the Group during the year. That
subsidiary also paid commission of HK$4.85 million
(2014: HKS4.55 million) to the aforementioned
associate for business referred to the Group during
the year.

The Company has leased office space in Mainland
China to a company with 30% equity interest held
by FIDG, a controlling shareholder of the Company
in prior year. A renewal tenancy agreement was
entered into by the Company in June 2015 with
term of lease of two months commenced from
1 June 2015 with monthly rental of RMB71,280
and it was not further renewed upon expiry. A
rental income of approximately RMB0.53 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.66 million)
(2014: approximately RMB0.78 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$0.99 million) was received by the
Company during the year.
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(d) Key management personnel

The senior executives’ emolument for the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 are detailed as follows:

2015 2014

BT T Vil avin

HK$'000 HKS'000

EE0E Directors' fees 1,190 1,190
e FERAEAM Salaries, housing and other allowances,

AL REYA = and benefits in kind 5,136 6,562
RIRAE A FT B R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 52 96
e Bonus 4,220 4,270

10,598 12,118
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s A BB R I 2 35 COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
2015 2014
TR BT T BT T
Note HKS'000 HKS'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
JER T Y] Property, plant and equipment 4,033 4,121
Tﬁ;ﬁ%% Investment properties 95,515 103,983
BB A Subsidiaries 1,423,985 820,915
/N T Associates 177,800 188,546
AEHESRmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 727,920 770,129
2,429,253 1,887,694
RBEE Current assets
E b fE U BR 20 Other debtors 1,480 3,641
SEANE N8 Prepayments and deposits 670 459
REAFEERABRIE Financial assets at fair value through
NEREE profit or loss 303 348
He MIRITHEF Cash and bank balances 287,579 874,642
290,032 879,090
DEAEBIELENEE Assets classified as held for sale 10,746 -
___300,778 | 879,090
REBEE Current liabilities
EMEMNEZRLEER  Other creditors and accruals 17,518 18,049
RITER Bank borrowings 113,734 579,097
JE S AR BRFR 1R Current income tax payable 24,976 26,154
BRNISGIE 28 Y 623,300
REBEEFRE Net current assets 144,550 255,790
BEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 2,573,803 2,143,484
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S S EIIABSIR IR () 35 COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (Continued)
2015 2014
2 E BT T BT T
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
|ITER Bank borrowings 502,116 -
BEEMEHRAE Deferred income tax liabilities 40,551 47,664
___ 942667 | ____ 47,664
EEFE Net assets 2,031,136 2,095,820
[N Share capital 891,135 891,135
HitfAES Other reserves (a) 500,299 540,853
REER Retained profits
R A% B Proposed dividend 22,971 22,971
HAh Others 616,055 640,861
REMZEKRSEER Amount recognised in other
RAEZIRATHE comprehensive income and
BEHENEE accumulated in equity relating
BEBEHIE to assets held for sale 676 =
RSB Total equity 2,031,136 2,095,820
SERE Weng Ruo Tong
2 Director
8% Liu Cheng
- Director
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\ = IR Yy > (43 )
35 A A B ARILER (4]) 35 COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (Continued)
@ FANEMEESZEBHNOT: (@) The movement of other reserves during the year
was as follows:
HitffE e
Other reserves
HEEER Hity
BX@EE RESM BHhEAES mES
e f##EE  Leasehold ot REER
BRE ROEBE Capital Investment buildings Total REHEF ok
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves profits equity
B¥Tr EETT BETT BRI BETT  BETRT EBEFTT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
#0141 718 At 1 January 2014 459,429 384,620 47,086 223,237 9 654,952 575,257 1,689,638
A2014F3A38BEZE  Transition to no-par value regime
BEEHE on 3 March 2014
(:%830()(i) ) (Note 30(a)(i)) 431,706 (384,620) (47,086) - - (431,706) - -
AFEREMEME  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 317,607 - 317,607 111,546 429,153
BB Dividend - - - - - - (22971) (22,971)
#2014512A318 At 31 December 2014 891,135 = - 540,844 9 540,853 663,832 2,095,820
ARMT: Representing:
20145 RIS 2014 proposed dividend - - - - - - 22,97 2,971
ity Others 891,135 - - 540,844 9 540,853 640,861 2,072,849
#2014512A318 At 31 December 2014 891,135 = - 540,844 9 540,853 663,832 2,095,820
R2015F1A18 At 1 January 2015 891,135 - - 540,844 9 540,853 663,832 2,095,820
AEELENELE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (42,209) 2,331 (39,878) (1,835) (41,713)
HRE Dividend - - - - - - (22,971) (22,971)
R2015F12A431A At 31 December 2015 891,135 - = 498,635 2,340 500,975 639,026 2,031,136
AT Representing:
REMZEYNEER L Amount recognised in other
R R 2T B R E comprehensive income and
HENEEFRD accumulated in equity relating
I to assets held for sale - - - 676 - 676 - 676
20155 BRI 2 2015 proposed dividend - - - - - - 22,971 22,971
Eit Others 891,135 - - 497,959 2,340 500,299 616,055 2,007,489
R2015%12831A At 31 December 2015 891,135 - - 498,635 2,340 500,975 639,026 2,031,136
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 which principally

RN ESNETE affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
& BERTR x&E
Eehy BRERAFHE FrhER
Place of Particulars  Group's TEEK
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
ARER Name of company and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
%E%BEERADF  Dorfine Development Limited e 2R (B %27 ) 100% MERE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HK$2) Property investment
BEBEREERAE Fujian Minxin Investments hE A RERME HfER 100% BEER
Co, Ltd. BEDET
EWER
BEI01ET
The People’s  Registered capital Investment
Republic of China  of HK$1,200 million holding
Paid-in capital
of HK$1,011 million
BE(hE)RE Min Xin (China) Investment RBRAHEE 1RERIET 100% REEK
BRAFE Limited British 1 share of USS1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BiERIBERAE Min Xin Insurance Company BB 5,500 it 100% &R
Limited (BB1ET) —REBRE®
Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general
(HKS100 million) insurance business
—HM=TEEE Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin A RERME EWER 100% RENEER
NEERERANE  Micro Credit Company Limited ARB3IET REFZEREH
The People’s Paid-in capital Provision of
Republic of China  of RMB300 million micro credit and
entrusted loans
AERRAF Take Chance Company Limited BE 2k (B#2T) 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HK$2) Property investment
BBEERAF Thousand Limited BiE 1k (B%1T) 100% K&K
Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) Investment holding
THEERAMB AT Welljet Development Limited BB 2 (B%2m) 100% MERE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HK$2) Property investment
BEREE Indirectly held
BEHEERAA Min Xin Properties Limited e 5008 &% 100% REER
(##50087T)
Hong Kong 5 million shares Investment
(HKS5 million) holding
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AREBR2015F12831BEEEREZEE Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for

MERmAFBOT

g

investment as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

A&H BaRE

B EhEsR BEE
B Group's  Approximate
Lease attributable gross floor BRAR
Location expiry interest area Existing use

1 BT SR iE847-8655

KB KB T EN75 Rk
A EEBR
MEEE

2 HEARKMBEREEND

RINGR1S8IRIRE 5 22E R
nE

3 SEARKMBERGEND

RRISSHIRRESH T =8
B E#42 48R 4425 448

4 HEARKMBEREEND

BANENOREEAB4ERLE

5 BEARANERRZEMT

HREBKINRERAE
BED2E T

Att%  Frisqft

Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 14,841 BE
store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
the whole of 1st and 2nd floors

Winfield Building

847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei

Hong Kong
22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza 2044 100 41,288 EES
158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial

The People’s Republic of China

Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5227 BE
Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People’s Republic of China

West Half of 14/F, Reliance Building 2043 100 281 ES
119 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
The People’s Republic of China

Unit D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 1225 =
121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential
The People’s Republic of China
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